
Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
A.    MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
B. ROLL CALL 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
D. PROCLAMATIONS (Acknowledgement) 

1. Recognizing Extra Mile Day – November 1, 2023 
2. Honoring Gatesworth Senior Living - 35th Anniversary 
3. Honoring Arts and Letters Tradition of Literary Excellence Award – Carl Phillips 
4. Honoring Arts and Letters Returning Artists – Mama Lisa Gage 

 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. October 9, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
 
F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 none 
 
G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

1. Renau Bozarth was sworn in to the LSBD Board on October 17, 2023 in the Clerk’s office. 
2. Chris Cholley was sworn in to the Park Commission on October 19, 2023 in the Clerk’s office. 
3. Olivia Steely was sworn in to the Arts and Letter Commission on October 20, 2023 in the Clerk’s office. 
4. Linda Fried was sworn in the Urban Forestry Commission on October 20, 2023 in the Clerk’s office. 
5. Robert Levy was sworn in to the CALOP Commission on October 20, 2023 in the Clerk’s office. 

 
H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 

Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.   
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room. 

 
The public may also submit written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be  sent via email to:  
councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to City Council prior 
to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting. Please note, when 
submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also not if your comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and 
address are not provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in the official record. 
 
I. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
J. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1.  Text Amendment – 608 Kingsland 
 

K. CONSENT AGENDA (1 voice vote required) 
none 

 
L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT –  (voice vote on each item as needed) 

1. Receipt of Comprehensive Plan (Adopted by the Plan Commission on 10/6/2023) 
2. Eminent Domain Initiation 
3. Funding request for emergency remediation and clean-up of the for the Seafood City store (8020 Olive) 
4. OMCI Participation 
5. Conditional Use Permit (CUP-23-04) – 608 Kingsland 

 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, October 23, 2023 
6:30 p.m. 

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 2 of 2 
 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  (2nd and 3rd readings – roll call vote required) 
1. BILL 9528 – AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI TO 

PARTICIPATE IN THEMISSOURI FIRE FIGHTERS’ CRITICAL ILLNESS TRUST AND POOL. 
 

2. BILL 9529 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 205.020 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO ADDITIONS, INSERTIONS, DELETIONS 
AND AMENDMENTS TO THE INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE, 2018 EDITION, BY ADDING 
PROVISIONS ON PREMISES IDENTIFICATION FOR EDUCATIONAL GROUP BUILDINGS. 

 
3. BILL 9530 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 400.2130 AND 400.1140 OF THE 

MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, RELATING TO THE MINIMUM OFF-
STREET PARKING AND LOADING SPACE REQUIREMENTS AND MINIMUM LOT AREA 
REQUREMENTS FOR EXISTING ELEVATOR APARTMENTS BUILDINGS IN THE “CC” CORE 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT. 

 
 

N. NEW BUSINESS 
Resolutions   (voice vote required) 

Resolution  
1. Res 2023-16  FY23 Budget Amendment #5 

 
Bills   (Introduction and 1st reading - no vote required) 

2. BILL 9531 – AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE COMPENSATION TO BE PAID TO CITY OFFICIALS 
AND EMPLOYEES AS ENUMERATED HEREIN FROM AND AFTER NOVEMBER 13, 2023, AND 
REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 7337. 

 
O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

R. EXECUTIVE SESSION (roll call vote required) 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal actions, causes 
of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged communications 
between a public governmental body or its representatives or attorneys. 

 
S. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The public may also observe via: 
Live Stream via YouTube: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ 
 
Posted October 20, 2023 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ


2023 “EXTRA MILE DAY” 

WHEREAS;  The City of University City, is a community which acknowledges that a special vibrancy exists 
within the entire community when its individual citizens collectively “go the extra mile” in personal effort, 
volunteerism, and service; and 

WHEREAS; The City of University City, is a community which encourages its citizens to maximize their 
personal contribution to the community by giving of themselves wholeheartedly and with total effort, 
commitment, and conviction to their individual ambitions, family, friends, and community; and 

WHEREAS; The City of University City, is a community which chooses to shine a light on and celebrate 
individuals and organizations within its community who “go the extra mile” in order to make a difference and 
lift up fellow members of their community; and 

WHEREAS; The City of University City, acknowledges the mission of Extra Mile America to create 550 Extra 
Mile cities in America and is proud to support “Extra Mile Day” on November 1, 2023. 

NOW, THEREFORE, The City Council of University City in the State of Missouri, do hereby proclaim 
November 1, 2023, to be Extra Mile Day. We urge each individual in the community to take time on this day 
to not only “go the extra mile” in his or her own life, but to also acknowledge all those who are inspirational in 
their efforts and commitment to make their organizations, families, community, country, or world a better 
place. 

WHEREOF, The City Council of University City in the State of Missouri have hereunto set our hands and 
caused the Seal of the City of University City to be affixed this 23rd day of October in the year Two Thousand 
and Twenty-three. 

     SEAL 

Councilmember Aleta Klein Councilmember Steve McMahon 

Councilmember Jeff Hales Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Councilmember Dennis Fuller Mayor Terry Crow 

Councilmember Stacy Clay ATTEST 
City Clerk, LaRette Reese 

PROCLAMATION 
OF THE 

CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

D - 1 - 1



WHEREAS, 35 years ago, The Gatesworth debuted in University City, offering St. Louis area seniors a living experience nothing short of 
exceptional and quickly became known as the region’s premier independent senior living community featuring 297 beautifully appointed 
apartments that attracted residents drawn to the personalized service, top-notch amenities and breathtaking outdoor spaces; and 

WHEREAS, The Gatesworth attracts and retains a highly trained staff committed to making life more convenient, more enjoyable, and 
more vibrant for residents; and 

WHEREAS, The community continued to grow over the years, welcoming the thinkers, dreamers, movers, and doers of St. Louis who 
were ready to sit back, relax and enjoy life; and 

WHEREAS, in 1994, McKnight Place Extended Care also opened on the Gatesworth Campus, followed in 2002 by McKnight Place 
Assisted Living and, in 2017,  by a new 3-story Assisted Living expansion, featuring 90 new, upscale apartment homes; and 

WHEREAS, 2018 saw the complete renovation of the existing Assisted Living building, which now features an additional 18 assisted 
living apartments and also is home to 27 separate memory care apartments, marking the first time dedicated memory care has been 
available on the Gatesworth campus; and  

WHEREAS, The footprint of the 15-acre Gatesworth campus is now one million square feet, within which residents have enhanced access 
to the comprehensive continuum of care services available; and  

WHEREAS, The Gatesworth has been named as one of the “Best Senior Living” communities by US News World Reports, and is 
recognized as a pioneer in providing area seniors with a variety of quality services in a warm, residential environment; and 

WHEREAS, with over 500 employees, the locally owned and operated Gatesworth campus is estimated to be one of the largest employers 
in University City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, The City Council of University City in the State of Missouri, do hereby proclaim, October 29, 2023, as: 

“THE GATESWORTH DAY” 

In the City of University City and urge all citizens to join me in congratulating The Gatesworth on its 35th Anniversary and extending best 
wishes for many more successful years to come. 

WHEREOF, The City Council of University City in the State of Missouri have hereunto set our hands and caused the Seal of the City of 
University City to be affixed this 23rd day of October in the year Two Thousand and Twenty-three. 

     SEAL 

Councilmember Aleta Klein Councilmember Steve McMahon 

Councilmember Jeff Hales Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Councilmember Dennis Fuller Mayor Terry Crow 

Councilmember Stacy Clay ATTEST 
City Clerk, LaRette Reese 

PROCLAMATION 
OF THE 

CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

D - 2 - 1



WHEREAS, poems have also been viewed as carriers of messages from the unconscious to the conscious mind. Wherever 
people gather to mark a moment, they speak from heart to heart, with poetry; and 

WHEREAS, Carl Phillips was born in Everett, Washington in 1959, he earned a Bachelor of  Arts from Harvard, an Master 
of Arts in Teaching from the University of Massachusetts, and Master of Art in creative writing from Boston University; today 
he lives in St. Louis, Missouri and teaches at Washington University; and  

WHEREAS, Carl Phillips is the author of 16 books of poetry, most recently “Then the War: And Selected Poems 2007-2020 
(Carcanet, 2022)”, which won the 2023 Pulitzer Prize; other honors include the Kingsley Tufts Poetry Award, the Los 
Angeles Times Book Award, the Aiken Taylor Award; and 

WHEREAS, Carl Phillips has received awards and fellowships from the Guggenheim Foundation, the Academy of America 
Poets, The American Academy of Arts and Letters, and the Library of Congress; and  

WHEREAS, Carl Phillips has been a finalist for both the National Book Award and the National Book Critics Circle Award; 
and  

WHEREAS, The Pulitzer Committee has declared his work "A masterful collection that chronicles American culture as the 
country struggles to make sense of its politics, of life in the wake of a pandemic, and of our place in a changing global 
community..."; and  

WHEREAS, On November 5, 2023 we will gather to honor the 2023 Pulitzer Prize winner, Carl Phillips, for his many literary 
achievements as an outstanding poet. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of University City in the State of Missouri, on behalf of the people of University City, 
congratulate Carl Phillips on receiving the 2023 Tradition of Literary Excellence Award for his outstanding poetry 
contributions to the City of University City and the world. 

WHEREOF, The City Council of University City in the State of Missouri have hereunto set our hands and caused the Seal 
of the City of University City to be affixed this 23rd day of October in the year Two Thousand and Twenty-three. 

  SEAL 

Councilmember Aleta Klein Councilmember Steve McMahon 

Councilmember Jeff Hales Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Councilmember Dennis Fuller Mayor Terry Crow 

Councilmember Stacy Clay ATTEST 
City Clerk, LaRette Reese 

PROCLAMATION 
OF THE 

CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

D - 3 - 1



WHEREAS, the University City Municipal Commission on Arts and Letters is pleased to welcome Mama Lisa Gage to this 
year’s Returning Artists Series; and 

WHEREAS, Mama Lisa Gage is a 1980 graduate of University City High and a member of the schools Hall of Fame and an 
alumna of Harris-Stowe State University and Webster University; and 

WHEREAS, she has been a tenured teacher in the University City and Normandy school districts, where she taught 
mathematics, as well as African Cross-Cultural Studies at Lindenwood University; and 

WHEREAS, Mama Lisa Gage is the founder, and artistic director of Fundisha Enterprises, an enterprise that focuses its 
works on empowering the community through the preservation of African culture and the celebration of performing arts 
traditions from the African diaspora; and 

WHEREAS, Mama Lisa Gage brings over 40 years of professional performance experience and expertise in academics, 
percussion, dance, storytelling, craft, and oral history; and  

WHEREAS, Mama Lisa Gage has collaborated with St. Louis Poet Laureate Shirley LeFlore, Dunham choreographer 
Theodore Jamison, folk masters Kasa Panzu of the Democratic Republic of the Congo, Donald Dorcilus of Haiti, and Oswald 
Moses of Trinidad; and 

WHEREAS, her skills and talents have been preserved on film in two documentaries done for cable TV, “Mama Lisa 
Teaches Kwanzaa” and “Changing Times: Teen Talent”; and 

WHEREAS, she has earned the 2000 Lone Star Lodge Humanitarian Award, the 2005 Griot Gala Tribunal Award, the 2009 
St. Louis American Excellence in Education Award, the 2013 Distinguished Alumni Award from Harris-Stowe State 
University, the 2013 Gitana Productions Recognition for Cross Cultural Arts Award   and the 2014 CWAH Community 
Outreach Award. 

NOW, THEREFORE, The City Council of the City of University City, Missouri, do hereby recognize and acknowledge Scott 
Black for his many professional accomplishments, and for his return to the City Of University City as a guest of the Municipal 
Commission on Arts And Letters’ Returning Artists Series, a program which brings back artistically renowned graduates of 
University City High School to work with current University City students. 

WHEREOF, We have hereunto set our hands and caused the Seal of the City of University City to be affixed this 23rd day 
of October in the year Two Thousand and Twenty-Three. 

    SEAL 

Councilmember Aleta Klein Councilmember Steve McMahon 

Councilmember Jeff Hales Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Councilmember Dennis Fuller Mayor Terry Crow 

Councilmember Stacy Clay ATTEST 
City Clerk, LaRette Reese 

PROCLAMATION 
OF THE 

CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

D - 4 - 1



 

Page 1 of 6 2023-10-09 Regular Session Minutes 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA 
 

A.  MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held on Monday, October 9, 2023, 
Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 
B. ROLL CALL 

In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:  
 
   Councilmember Stacy Clay 
   Councilmember Aleta Klein 
   Councilmember Steven McMahon 
   Councilmember Jeffrey Hales; (excused) 
 `  Councilmember Dennis Fuller 
   Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 
    
Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose and City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr.; 
Police Chief, Larry Hampton; Director of Planning & Zoning, Dr. John Wagner, and Malikah 
Johnson, Owner of Morning Star Academy-West. 

 
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Hearing no amendments, Councilmember Fuller moved to approve the Agenda as presented, it 
was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously. 

 
Mayor Crow stated that based on what has occurred in Israel, he thinks it would be appropriate to 
make a few comments; which are not necessarily on behalf of his colleagues, since many may 
have different beliefs.  But the murder of innocence is never acceptable.  The desecration of a 
corpse is never acceptable.  The taking of children as hostages is never acceptable.  And the 
celebration of murder; especially of civilians, is never acceptable.  To excuse or justify war crimes 
strips both victims and perpetrators of their humanity, so please stop this violence.  Prayers go out 
to the millions of Israelis and Palestinians who are in harm's way as a result of yesterday's violent 
attack. 
 

D. PROCLAMATIONS - (Acknowledgement) 
None 
 

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. September 11, 2023, Meeting Minutes were moved by Councilmember McMahon, it was 

seconded by Councilmember Clay, and the motion carried unanimously. 
2. September 26, 2023, Study Session Minutes (Expanding Outdoor Dining), was moved by 

Councilmember Klein, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion 
carried unanimously, with the exception of Mayor Crow. 

3. September 26, 2023, Meeting Minutes were moved by Councilmember Fuller, it was 
seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously. 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

CITY HALL, Fifth Floor 
6801 Delmar Blvd., University City, Missouri 63130 

Monday, October 9, 2023 
6:30 p.m. 

E - 1 - 1



Page 2 of 6 2023-10-09 Regular Session Minutes 

F. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
1. Charlene Temple is nominated to the Arts and Letter Commission as a fill-in by

Councilmember Steve McMahon, it was seconded by Councilmember Klein and the motion
carried unanimously.

2. Nicole Baumgarten is nominated to the Green Practices Commission as a fill-in by
Councilmember Steve McMahon, it was seconded by Councilmember Fuller and the motion
carried unanimously.

3. Linda Fried is nominated to the Urban Forestry Commission as a fill-in by Councilmember
Bwayne Smotherson, it was seconded by Councilmember Fuller and the motion carried
unanimously.

G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
1. Susan Armstrong was sworn into the Stormwater Commission on September 22nd, in the

Clerk’s office.
2. Roger McFarland was sworn into the Urban Forestry on September 29th, in the Clerk’s office.
3. Roger McFarland was sworn into the Board of Appeals on September 29th, in the Clerk’s

office.
4. Jane Zeni was sworn into the Urban Forestry Commission on October 4th, in the Clerk’s

office.

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed)
Procedures for submitting comments for Citizen Participation and Public Hearings:
Request to Address the Council Forms are located on the ledge just inside the entrance.
Please complete and place the form in the basket at the front of the room.

Written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.  Comments may be sent
via email to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.
Such comments will be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official
record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting.

Please note that when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also note
whether your comment is on an agenda or a non-agenda item.  If a name and address are not provided, the comment
will not be recorded in the official record.

Diana Mastin, 1318 Mount Olive, U City, MO
Ms. Mastin stated when the storm caused a tree to fall on a neighbor's house; they cut it down,
leaving the stump and dead roots, which is unsightly.  And she hopes that the pictures she
brought tonight will illustrate the problem this has caused for residents forced to look at this on a
daily basis.

She stated that she is also still frustrated about the vacant house at 1315 Carleton where
several wires are hanging down in the easement that she and her neighbors are responsible for
maintaining.  It's just unfair how the owner of this home is allowed to let these wires, vines, and
weeds accumulate along their fence and into the easement that they have to clean up.

Frank Ollendorff, 8128 Cornell Court, U City, MO
Mr. Ollendorff stated he thinks the idea of putting a baseball field in Millar Park is out of order.
There are nineteen neighborhood parks that over the years have been specifically designed for
that neighborhood.  So, no changes should be made without first, meeting with those residents
to determine what they want. He stated the next park in line for review is Rabe; therefore, the
immediate action should be to withdraw any plans to put this field in Millar Park.

Mr. Ollendorff stated he thinks the City needs to concentrate on the PIANO; Police in
Annex Now.  In 1980 the City promised that the Annex would become the new police station.
But here we are in 2023, and it's still being delayed because of side issues that need to be
separated out.

E - 1 - 2

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


 

Page 3 of 6 2023-10-09 Regular Session Minutes 
 

He believes the City should devote all of its attention to putting the police in the Annex; which 
could be completed in 30 days, and then focus on the consultant's recommended changes.  
And perhaps, additional proposals could be obtained for the Trinity Building, One-Stop-Shop, 
City Hall, and parking; which are all important.  However, the Trivers' contract should be limited 
to designing the Annex for the Police Department.  
   

I. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

J. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
1. Liquor License – Colleen's Cookies, LLC. - 7337 Forsyth Blvd. 63105 
 

Mayor Crow opened the Public Hearing at 6:47 p.m., and after acknowledging that there were no 
written or oral comments the hearing was closed at 6:47 p.m. 
 

K. CONSENT AGENDA - (One voice vote required) 
1. Vehicle Purchase (Police) – (2) 2023 Dodge Chargers 
2. Liquor License – Colleen's Cookies, LLC. - 7337 Forsyth Blvd. 63105 
3. Trivers Agreement Amendment 
4. NAVIGATE Contract Amendment 

 
Councilmember Klein moved to approve Items 1 through 4 of the Consent Agenda, it was 
seconded by Councilmember McMahon. 
 
Councilmember Clay posed the following questions to Mr. Rose: 
Q.  It's my understanding that the Dodge Charger is not a vehicle typically purchased by the 
Police.  Can you talk a little bit about that since I've received several emails on this topic? 
A.  My understanding is that there was an issue regarding availability, but I'll ask Chief Hampton to 
provide you with their rationale. 
A.  (Chief Hampton):  The Department has utilized Dodge Chargers in the past because the focus 
has been on purchasing American-made SUVs that fall within our budget.  These two vehicles are 
currently available, police-rated, and are within the price range we have allotted.  
Q.  Do the Trivers and NAVIGATE Contracts contain the appropriate language that would 
allow the City to terminate each contract in the event it wishes to pursue any new 
information?  
A.  Normally these contracts have an exit clause, but since the objective is to have them complete 
the redesign of the Annex and One-Stop-Shop, as soon as possible, any work conducted before 
the suspension of their contracts would require them to be compensated.  
Q.  Does the City Manager's Report reference a commitment to have the Director of Finance 
provide Council with cost estimates comparing new construction to the cost of renovating?   
A.  In September of 2019, Council received a report from Trivers that identified the cost 
comparisons for renovating the Annex versus the construction of a new facility.  What was not 
included in that comparison were the costs associated with purchasing the land needed for a new 
facility, since the initial belief was that the City could utilize the Savers Thrift property that is now 
being developed.  So, staff will provide Council with a sense of what the costs are in today's market 
by supplying you with a straight-line CPI adjustment of 3% for restoration of the Annex and the cost 
for new construction.   
 
Councilmember Smotherson stated while he did not ask for Items 1 and 2 to be moved to the City 
Manager's Report, and will be voting in the affirmative on the motion to approve the Consent 
Agenda, he would like the record to note that his vote should not be reflected as a confirmation of 
these two items.     
 
Councilmember Klein asked if there was any flexibility in the timeline for the Trivers' contract?  Mr. 
Rose stated that based on the City's appreciation for what is occurring with interest rates, this 
project is being accelerated; even if that means advancing it faster than their proposed timeframe 
of March.   

E - 1 - 3



 

Page 4 of 6 2023-10-09 Regular Session Minutes 
 

And he believes staff has provided Council with that estimated timeline based on the amount of 
work being required.  
 Councilmember Klein stated while she understands that there have been several discussions 
about costs associated with a new building versus renovation, she does not believe these costs 
can be accurately compared without first, considering the cost of not renovating the Annex and 
Trinity buildings that were viewed to be historic and protected from being utilized for anything other 
than public use by a strong vote of the residents in 2016.  So, from the community's perspective, as 
well as her own, what you really have on the table is the cost of renovating; the cost of a new 
building, and the cost of not renovating these buildings.  Therefore, she would like Council to think 
about the public's mandate regarding the importance of these buildings and their desire for how 
they should be utilized.   
 
Voice vote on Councilmember Klein's motion to approve carried unanimously. 
 

L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT - (Voice vote on each item as needed) 
1. CUP-23-05 - A Conditional Use Permit (CUP) application to allow a Day Care Center in the 

“IC” Industrial Commercial District at 6523 Olive Boulevard.  
 

Mr. Rose stated staff is recommending that Council consider a CUP to allow a Day Care 
Center located at 6523 Olive Boulevard, within the Industrial Commercial District. 

 
Dr. Wagner stated although this location was previously utilized as a Day Care Center, a new 
owner is now applying to open her center in this District.  
 
Councilmember Smotherson asked why a CUP is even necessary if this location was previously 
used for the same purpose?  Dr. Wagner stated the CUP was discontinued when the previous Day 
Care ceased to operate.   
 
Councilmember Fuller stated he was curious to know if the City performs background checks on 
personnel involved in the operation of a daycare center?  
 
Ms. Johnson stated that an owner's background must be checked and approved by the State prior 
to being granted permission to operate a daycare.   
 
Mr. Rose and Chief Hampton both concurred that the City is not involved in any capacity because 
the State takes precedence over conducting these types of background checks.   
 
Councilmember Fuller asked if any of the background information obtained by the State is provided 
to the City?  Chief Hampton stated nothing is provided to police departments since everything is 
governed and regulated by the State.   
 
Dr. Wagner noted that in order to receive an Occupancy Permit all of the applicant's authorizations 
and certifications must be in order.   
 
Councilmember Fuller moved to approve, it was seconded by Councilmember McMahon, and the 
motion carried unanimously. 
    

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - (Roll call vote required on 2nd and 3rdreadings) 
None 
 

N. NEW BUSINESS 
Resolutions - (Voice vote required) 

Resolution  
None 

E - 1 - 4



 

Page 5 of 6 2023-10-09 Regular Session Minutes 
 

 

Bills - (No vote required for introduction and 1st reading) 
 
   Introduced by Councilmember McMahon 

1. BILL 9528 – AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, 
MISSOURI TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MISSOURI FIRE FIGHTERS’ CRITICAL 
ILLNESS TRUST AND POOL. Bill Number 9528 was read for the first time. 

 
   Introduced by Councilmember Klein 

2. BILL 9529 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 205.020 OF THE MUNICIPAL 
CODE OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO ADDITIONS, 
INSERTIONS, DELETIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO THE INTERNATIONAL FIRE 
CODE, 2018 EDITION, BY ADDING PROVISIONS ON PREMISES IDENTIFICATION 
FOR EDUCATIONAL GROUP BUILDINGS.  Bill Number 9529 was read for the first 
time. 

 
   Introduced by Councilmember McMahon 

3. BILL 9530 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 400.2130 AND 400.1140 OF 
THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, RELATING TO THE 
MINIMUM OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING SPACE REQUIREMENTS AND 
MINIMUM LOT AREA REQUIREMENTS FOR EXISTING ELEVATOR APARTMENT 
BUILDINGS IN THE “CC” CORE COMMERCIAL DISTRICT.  Bill Number 9530 was 
read for the first time. 

 
O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1.  Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2.  Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 

Councilmember Fuller reported that in September, the City lost an original member of the 
Stormwater Commission to cancer, Eric Stein.  Mr. Stein was the technical brains behind the 
early warning flood system and the Commission has been scrambling to find a replacement 
with his caliber of scientific expertise.   So, in his memory, the Commission has asked that I 
send out an enormous amount of gratitude and heartfelt condolences to his family.  

 
3.  Boards, Commissions, and Task Force minutes 
4.  Other Discussions/Business 

   
P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION - (continued if needed) 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

R. EXECUTIVE SESSION - (Roll call vote required) 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal 
actions, causes of action, or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential 
or privileged communications between a public governmental body or its representatives or 
attorneys. 

 
Councilmember Fuller moved to close the Regular Session and go into a Closed Session, it was 
seconded by Councilmember McMahon. 
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Fuller, Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Clay, Councilmember 
Klein, Councilmember McMahon, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None. 

E - 1 - 5



 

Page 6 of 6 2023-10-09 Regular Session Minutes 
 

 
S.    ADJOURNMENT   

Mayor Crow thanked Ms. Dean for filling in for the City Clerk on such short notice. He then 
thanked everyone for their participation and closed the Regular Session at 7:06 p.m. to go into a 
Closed Session on the second floor.  The Closed Session reconvened in an open session at 
7:25 p.m. 

 
 
Kena Dean/lr 
Acting City Clerk 

 

E - 1 - 6



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

PH20231023-01

TXT 23-03: Public Hearing for a Zoning Ordinance text amendment to allow changes to the parking standards for existing
mixed-use buildings and to exempt existing mixed-use buildings in the Core Commercial (CC) zoning district from the
minimum lot area per dwelling unit standard.

John L. Wagner Planning and Development                   

Public Hearing no

NA

N/A

N/A

N/A

Attached is the notice from Missouri Lawyers Media, indicating that the notice was published 
in their October 8, 2023 publication. 

Economic Development, Community Quality of Life.

City Manager, Gregrory Rose October 23, 2023
J - 1 - 1



1400 S. Highway Drive,
Fenton,MO, 63026,USA
314-421-1880, https://molawyersmedia.com/news/st-louis/

PROOF OF PURCHASE
COPY FOR YOUR RECORDS ONLY, THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE OR
AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

University City, City Of,Account ID 64741
6801 Delmar Blvd,
St. Louis,MO,631303104

ADVERTISER

Please Read Carefully
is not responsible for errors or

omissions after the First Run Date. If any errors exist in your ad,
please contact us at .
Attorney's placing legal advertisements are responsible for
payment of same.

The Countian (St Louis)

314-421-1880

Purchase Order #:
Insertion Order #: 2545712
Placement: The Countian (St Louis)
Index: Government
Category: Hearings and Minutes
First Issue: 10/08/2023
Last Issue: 10/08/2023
# of Insertions: 1
Net Charge: $23.80
Payments/Credits: $0.00
Amount Due: $23.80
Affidavit Reference: TXT-23-03

Ad Proof

* Changes to this order may result in pricing
changes *

Proof Of Purchase Insertion Order: 2545712 Page 1 of 1

J - 1 - 2



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CM20231023-01

Planning Commission Adopted Comprehensive Plan

Gregory Rose City Manager's Office 
City Manager's Report Yes

I recommend the Mayor and Council receive the Comprehensive Plan that was adopted by 
the Planning Commission on September 27 2023.

None 

0

This item asks the Mayor and Council to receive the Comprehensive Plan that was adopted 
by the Planning Commission on September 27, 2023.  You are scheduled to be briefed on 
the contents of the Comprehensive Plan during your upcoming full day work session.

2023 Adopted Comprehensive Plan 

Encourage High Quality Growth

City Manager, Gregrory Rose October 23, 2023

L - 1 - 1



L - 1 - 2



WeMake 
[ l�ITY�
Resilient. Livable. Prosperous. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

OCTOBER 6, 2023 

Adopted by Plan Commission on September 27, 2023 
(Resolution #PC-2023-07) 

s .. r,,-,,, .. 

L - 1 - 3



L - 1 - 4



L - 1 - 5



L - 1 - 6



L - 1 - 7



L - 1 - 8



L - 1 - 9



L - 1 - 10



L - 1 - 11



L - 1 - 12



L - 1 - 13



L - 1 - 14



L - 1 - 15



L - 1 - 16



L - 1 - 17



L - 1 - 18



L - 1 - 19



L - 1 - 20



L - 1 - 21



L - 1 - 22



L - 1 - 23



L - 1 - 24



L - 1 - 25



L - 1 - 26



L - 1 - 27



L - 1 - 28



L - 1 - 29



L - 1 - 30



L - 1 - 31



L - 1 - 32



L - 1 - 33



L - 1 - 34



L - 1 - 35



L - 1 - 36



L - 1 - 37



L - 1 - 38



L - 1 - 39



L - 1 - 40



L - 1 - 41



L - 1 - 42



L - 1 - 43



L - 1 - 44



L - 1 - 45



L - 1 - 46



L - 1 - 47



L - 1 - 48



L - 1 - 49



L - 1 - 50



L - 1 - 51



L - 1 - 52



L - 1 - 53



L - 1 - 54



L - 1 - 55



L - 1 - 56



L - 1 - 57



L - 1 - 58



L - 1 - 59



L - 1 - 60



L - 1 - 61



L - 1 - 62



L - 1 - 63



L - 1 - 64



L - 1 - 65



L - 1 - 66



L - 1 - 67



L - 1 - 68



L - 1 - 69



L - 1 - 70



L - 1 - 71



L - 1 - 72



L - 1 - 73



L - 1 - 74



L - 1 - 75



L - 1 - 76



L - 1 - 77



L - 1 - 78



L - 1 - 79



L - 1 - 80



L - 1 - 81



L - 1 - 82



L - 1 - 83



L - 1 - 84



L - 1 - 85



L - 1 - 86



L - 1 - 87



L - 1 - 88



L - 1 - 89



L - 1 - 90



L - 1 - 91



L - 1 - 92



L - 1 - 93



L - 1 - 94



L - 1 - 95



L - 1 - 96



L - 1 - 97



L - 1 - 98



L - 1 - 99



L - 1 - 100



L - 1 - 101



L - 1 - 102



L - 1 - 103



L - 1 - 104



L - 1 - 105



L - 1 - 106



L - 1 - 107



L - 1 - 108



L - 1 - 109



L - 1 - 110



L - 1 - 111



L - 1 - 112



L - 1 - 113



L - 1 - 114



L - 1 - 115



L - 1 - 116



L - 1 - 117



L - 1 - 118



L - 1 - 119



L - 1 - 120



L - 1 - 121



L - 1 - 122



L - 1 - 123



L - 1 - 124



L - 1 - 125



L - 1 - 126



L - 1 - 127



L - 1 - 128



L - 1 - 129



L - 1 - 130



L - 1 - 131



L - 1 - 132



L - 1 - 133



L - 1 - 134



L - 1 - 135



L - 1 - 136



L - 1 - 137



L - 1 - 138



L - 1 - 139



L - 1 - 140



L - 1 - 141



L - 1 - 142



L - 1 - 143



L - 1 - 144



L - 1 - 145



L - 1 - 146



L - 1 - 147



L - 1 - 148



L - 1 - 149



L - 1 - 150



L - 1 - 151



L - 1 - 152



L - 1 - 153



L - 1 - 154



L - 1 - 155



L - 1 - 156



L - 1 - 157



L - 1 - 158



L - 1 - 159



L - 1 - 160



L - 1 - 161



L - 1 - 162



L - 1 - 163



L - 1 - 164



L - 1 - 165



L - 1 - 166



L - 1 - 167



L - 1 - 168



L - 1 - 169



L - 1 - 170



L - 1 - 171



L - 1 - 172



L - 1 - 173



L - 1 - 174



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CM20231023-02

Eminent Domain Initiation 

Brooke A. Smith City Manager's Office 
City Manager's Report No 

City Manager recommends approval 

There is no cost to initiate the process for condemnation, but if compliances is not obtained 
there will be future costs. 

Unknown 31.12.73

Third Ward Revitalizatoin 

Proposal to use eminent domain to acquire two (2) dilapidated properties that are vacant in 
the third ward (see attached). 

Staff is proposing to use eminent domain to acquire two (2) derelict properties located with in 
the RPA 2.  More information is found in the attached memorandum. 

Memorandum  

Community Quality of Life and Amenities  
Public Safety 

City Manager, Gregrory Rose October 23, 2023

L - 2 - 1



M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: Gregory Rose, City Manager 

FROM:  Brooke Smith, Deputy City Manager 

DATE: October 18, 2023 

SUBJECT: Eminent Domain Initiation for Derelict Properties 

The purpose of this memorandum is to provide background information on the request to use 
eminent domain to acquire two (2) derelict structures in RPA2.   

There are two (2) properties located in RPA2 that have been problem properties for a number of 
years.  Attached to this memorandum is a list of violations for the property at 1456 Laughlin and 
a list of violations for the property at 7345 Carleton.   

To date, the city has exhausted all of its options to bring these properties into compliance.  The 
owners of both properties are not local and have not been responsive to the city’s requests to 
bring this property into compliance.  Neighbors have expressed their concerns repeatedly and 
the city has used every tool currently at its disposal to no avail.  The properties remain vacant 
and continue to deteriorate.   

The novel approach of using eminent domain to acquire the properties is a last resort. If 
approved, the process will consist of the city sending a letter to the respective property owners 
informing them of the requirement to bring the homes into compliance or face the possibility of 
eminent domain.  If the properties are not brought into compliance within the required 
timeframe, the eminent domain process will begin.  A blight study will need to be performed and 
the city will need to determine long-term objectives for the properties.  The city will then 
negotiate in good faith with the property owners to purchase the properties.  Once the city has 
control of the properties, the intent is to prepare the properties for redevelopment.   

Staff is proposing the use of the Third Ward Revitalization funds to purchase the properties.  
This matter was discussed with the Housing and Third Ward Revitalization Task Force at its 
October meeting.  A letter from Chair Byron Price is attached for your review.  It is important to 
note that the task force was not completely against the proposed initiative but believed that it 
was premature to vote on the use of the Third Ward Revitalization funds prior to completing its 
planning process.  

The exact cost of this process is unknown at this time but will consist of the cost of the blight 
study, the purchase of the properties, and possibly the legal and administrative costs of those 
tasks.  The city anticipates recouping these costs upon the possible sale of the properties to be 
redeveloped.   

Attachments: Violations for 1456 Laughlin 

OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8531  

L - 2 - 2



   Violations for 7342 Carleton  
   Letter from Chair of Housing and Third Ward Revitalization Task Force  
 

L - 2 - 3



1456 Laughlin

8/29/2011 Plumbing Permit - Residential Repair leak in water meter pit

6/18/2014 Code Enforcement -Director Ordered Nuisance Abatement couch, pots, clothes, boxes, cabinet, wood, etc on the tree lawn

6/19/2014 Code Enforcement -Litter / Improper Storage couch, clothes, boxes, pots, cabinet, wood, etc on the tree lawn

6/24/2014 Code Enforcement -Trash / Illegal Dumping / Trash Containers trash / items being put out on the tree lawn

9/22/2016 High Grass and Weeds-High Grass & Weeds high grass, weeds, abandoned vehicle. caller very angry. property is vacant

8/29/2017 High Grass and Weeds-High Grass & Weeds Complaint of high grass on property

8/29/2017 Code Enforcement -Exterior Building Violations Complaint of exterior conditions

9/6/2018 Code Enforcement -Environmental Exterior Violations Tree limbs in front yard.

9/6/2018 High Grass and Weeds-High Grass & Weeds 20" weed grass & volunteer growth in back yard.

9/6/2018 Vehicles-Derelict Vehicles Unlicensed 1999 GMC Suburban

9/6/2018 Vehicles-Derelict Vehicles Unlicensed BLACK UTILITY TRAILER in back yard.

4/26/2019 Administrative Violations-Potential Vacant Buildings Potential Vacant Building.

4/26/2019 Code Enforcement -Exterior Building Violations Exterior building violation.

4/26/2019 Code Enforcement -Environmental Exterior Violations Enviromental exterior violations.

7/8/2019 Code Enforcement -Environmental Exterior Violations High grass and voluntary growth.

9/11/2019 Vacant Building Registration Vacant Property

4/23/2020 High Grass and Weeds-High Grass & Weeds Tall grass.

8/13/2020 Code Enforcement -Environmental Exterior Violations Tall grass and voluntary overgrowth in yard.

6/29/2021 Code Enforcement -Environmental Exterior Violations Tall grass, voluntary overgrowth and dead vegetation around yard.

10/14/2021 Condemnation-Condemnation Condemnation for Non-Compliance. Failure to comply with vacant property re     

10/19/2021 Code Enforcement -Environmental Exterior Violations Tall grass and voluntary overgrowth around the property.

8/31/2022 Code Enforcement -Environmental Exterior Violations Tall grass and voluntary overgrowth around the property.

10/27/2022 Code Enforcement -Environmental Exterior Violations Extreme voluntary overgrowth around the fence line and on against the prope

L - 2 - 4



7342 Carleton

9/28/2016 High Grass and Weeds-High Grass & Weeds Over-grown grass and weeds

11/9/2016 Administrative Violations-Fail to register a rental property agent Registered Rental Agent required

11/9/2016 Administrative Violations-Fail to register a rental property agent Failure to register rental property

11/9/2016 Code Enforcement -Environmental Exterior Violations Failure to have a Registered Rental Agent for the Property

4/5/2019 Administrative Violations-Potential Vacant Buildings Failure To Register Property As Vacant

7/10/2019 Code Enforcement -Environmental Exterior Violations
High grass, voluntary growth, hazardous tree needs to be removed in rear of yard. Guttering full 
of vegetation. Dead vegetation in driveway. Vegetation damaging property.

5/19/2020 Code Enforcement -Environmental Exterior Violations Tall grass and voluntary overgrowth of vegetation on property.

10/30/2020 Condemnation-Condemnation
Condemnation for non-compliance. Code enforcement cases for the property have not been 
addressed or resolved.

9/8/2021 High Grass and Weeds-High Grass & Weeds Per Cliff Cross (community director) order property abatement immediately.

11/3/2021 Administrative Violations-Potential Vacant Buildings This Property Has No Vacant Building Registration

9/26/2023 Vacant Property Reg/Occ Permit

9/26/2023 Res Bldg Permit - Miscellaneous Interior demo only.

9/29/2023 Dumpster/ Portable Storage -Dumpster / Portable Storage Containers Dumpster permit required.

10/5/2023 Dumpster/Portable Container Permit Parking and dumpster in the driveway

L - 2 - 5



Housing and Third Ward Revitalization Task Force 
      6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, MO 63130 – Phone:  314-862-6767 

October 17, 2023. 

Gregory Rose, City Manager 
City of University City  
6801 Delmar Boulevard  
University City, MO 63130 

Ms. LaRette Reese, City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 

RE: Actions from October 16, 2023 Meeting 

Dear Mr. Rose and Ms. Reese, 

At its regular meeting on Monday, October 16th at 6:30 p.m., the Housing and Third 
Ward Revitalization Task Force took the following actions(s):   

1. 7 Yes, 1 No, 1 Absent to recommend the Council not dedicate TIF funds for
the purpose of eminent domain to acquire vacant properties.

Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.  

Sincerely,  

/s/ Byron Price 

Byron Price, Chairperson 
Housing and Third Ward Revitalization Task Force 

L - 2 - 6



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CM20231023-03

Funding request for emergency remediation and clean-up of the for the 
Seafood City store.

John L. Wagner Planning and Development/Ward 2
City Manager's Report no

City Manager recommends approval.

$127,831.78

This is a funding request for clean-up and remediation of the Seafood City store located at 8020 
Olive Boulevard. The total requested, in addition to dumping fees and staff time, will be levied as a lien
on the property.

Attached are four (4) outstanding invoices from Bio-One STL and a Staff Memo.

Community Quality of Life.

City Manager, Gregrory Rose October 23, 2023

L - 3 - 1



  
 

 
 

M E M O R A N D U M  
 

 
TO:    Gregory Rose, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John Wagner, Ph.D., Director of Planning & Development 
 
DATE:   October 23, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Seafood City remediation cost 

 
 

 
This Memo outlines the emergency funding request in the amount of $127,831.78 for clean-up 
and remediation of the Seafood City store located at 8020 Olive Boulevard. The total requested, 
in addition to dumping fees and staff time, will be levied as a lien on the property. 
 
There are four (4) outstanding invoices, attached, that were not paid by the owner of the 
property, Six Fortune, LLC. Bio-One STL was hired on an emergency basis to remediate the 
store after the odor from the rotting seafood in the freezers and coolers became intolerable and 
unhealthy. Of the four (4) weeks and two (2) days that Bio-One STL was on site, one week was 
paid by the property owner. The remaining three (3) weeks and two (2) days, in addition to 
equipment rental, comprise the charges in these invoices.  
 
Six Fortune, LLC informed me that they are not currently in a position to pay the remaining 
balance of $127, 831.78.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
Four (4) invoices from Bio-One of STL 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

L - 3 - 2



Page 1 of 1

Bio-One of STL
17209 Chesterfield Airport Road, Suite 110

Chesterfield, MO  63005 US

+1 3145348031

Info@BioOneSTL.com

www.BioOneSTL.com

 

INVOICE
BILL TO
The City of University City

INVOICE 092223
DATE 09/22/2023
TERMS Due on receipt
DUE DATE 09/22/2023

DATE DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Day with Bio-Hazard 
Crew

DAILY RATE for Bio-Hazard Crew 
(9am-4pm)

Includes: Bio-Hazard Crew, PPE 
(Personal Protective Equipment), 
Generators for Flood 
Lights/Disinfectant Fog Machine 
Usage/Ozone Treatments for Odor 
Abatement/Air Scrubbers, 
Removal/Disposal of All 
Contaminates/Bio-Hazards/Odor 
Holding Contents, Acid/Enzyme Rinse 
and Scrub of Floor/Coolers/Deep 
Freezers/Shelving Units, Equipment, 
Supplies, and Fog/Chemicals Used in 
Disinfecting Treatments

Does Not Include:  Roll Off Dumpsters, 
Heavy Machinery Equipment Rentals if 
Needed Due to Unknowns

5 7,000.00 35,000.00

Equipment Rental(s) Weekly Rental for Stand Behind Skid 
Loader with Three Attachments.  
Weekly Rental for Manual Pallet Jack.  

Includes: Operators, Disinfection of 
Equipment at End of Day, and Storage

1 2,280.00 2,280.00

 BALANCE DUE $37,280.00

L - 3 - 3



Page 1 of 1

Bio-One of STL
17209 Chesterfield Airport Road, Suite 110

Chesterfield, MO  63005 US

+1 3145348031

Info@BioOneSTL.com

www.BioOneSTL.com

 

INVOICE
BILL TO
The City of University City

INVOICE 100623
DATE 10/06/2023
TERMS Due on receipt
DUE DATE 10/06/2023

DATE DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Day with Bio-Hazard 
Crew

DAILY RATE for Bio-Hazard Crew 
(9am-4pm)

Includes: Bio-Hazard Crew, PPE 
(Personal Protective Equipment), 
Generators for Flood 
Lights/Disinfectant Fog Machine 
Usage/Ozone Treatments for Odor 
Abatement/Air Scrubbers, 
Removal/Disposal of All 
Contaminates/Bio-Hazards/Odor 
Holding Contents, Acid/Enzyme Rinse 
and Scrub of Floor/Coolers/Deep 
Freezers/Shelving Units, Equipment, 
Supplies, and Fog/Chemicals Used in 
Disinfecting Treatments

Does Not Include:  Roll Off Dumpsters, 
Heavy Machinery Equipment Rentals if 
Needed Due to Unknowns

5 7,000.00 35,000.00

Equipment Rental(s) Weekly Rental for Stand Behind Skid 
Loader with Three Attachments.  
Weekly Rental for Manual Pallet Jack.  

Includes: Operators, Disinfection of 
Equipment at End of Day, and Storage

1 2,991.78 2,991.78

 BALANCE DUE $37,991.78

L - 3 - 4



Page 1 of 1

Bio-One of STL
17209 Chesterfield Airport Road, Suite 110

Chesterfield, MO  63005 US

+1 3145348031

Info@BioOneSTL.com

www.BioOneSTL.com

 

INVOICE
BILL TO
The City of University City

INVOICE 101323
DATE 10/13/2023
TERMS Due on receipt
DUE DATE 10/13/2023

DATE DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Day with Bio-Hazard 
Crew

DAILY RATE for Bio-Hazard Crew 
(9am-4pm)

Includes: Bio-Hazard Crew, PPE 
(Personal Protective Equipment), 
Generators for Flood 
Lights/Disinfectant Fog Machine 
Usage/Ozone Treatments for Odor 
Abatement/Air Scrubbers, 
Removal/Disposal of All 
Contaminates/Bio-Hazards/Odor 
Holding Contents, Acid/Enzyme Rinse 
and Scrub of Floor/Coolers/Deep 
Freezers/Shelving Units, Equipment, 
Supplies, and Fog/Chemicals Used in 
Disinfecting Treatments

Does Not Include:  Roll Off Dumpsters, 
Heavy Machinery Equipment Rentals if 
Needed Due to Unknowns

5 7,000.00 35,000.00

Equipment Rental(s) Weekly Rental for Stand Behind Skid 
Loader with Three Attachments.  
Weekly Rental for Manual Pallet Jack.  

Includes: Operators, Disinfection of 
Equipment at End of Day, and Storage

1 1,780.00 1,780.00

 BALANCE DUE $36,780.00

L - 3 - 5



Page 1 of 1

Bio-One of STL
17209 Chesterfield Airport Road, Suite 110

Chesterfield, MO  63005 US

+1 3145348031

Info@BioOneSTL.com

www.BioOneSTL.com

INVOICE
BILL TO
The City of University City

INVOICE 101823
DATE 10/18/2023
TERMS Due on receipt
DUE DATE 10/18/2023

DATE DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Day with Bio-Hazard 
Crew

DAILY RATE for Bio-Hazard Crew 
(9am-4pm)

Includes: Bio-Hazard Crew, PPE 
(Personal Protective Equipment), 
Generators for Flood 
Lights/Disinfectant Fog Machine 
Usage/Ozone Treatments for Odor 
Abatement/Air Scrubbers, 
Removal/Disposal of All 
Contaminates/Bio-Hazards/Odor 
Holding Contents, Acid/Enzyme Rinse 
and Scrub of Floor/Coolers/Deep 
Freezers/Shelving Units, Equipment, 
Supplies, and Fog/Chemicals Used in 
Disinfecting Treatments

Does Not Include:  Roll Off Dumpsters, 
Heavy Machinery Equipment Rentals if 
Needed Due to Unknowns

2 7,000.00 14,000.00

Equipment Rental(s) Weekly Rental for Stand Behind Skid 
Loader with Three Attachments.  
Weekly Rental for Manual Pallet Jack.  

Includes: Operators, Disinfection of 
Equipment at End of Day, and Storage

1 1,780.00 1,780.00

BALANCE DUE $15,780.00

L - 3 - 6



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CM20231023-04

Approval of participation in reimbursement program for project funding from operations, maintenance, and 
construction improvement (OMCI) taxing subdistricts.

John L. Wagner Planning and Development/All Wards
City Manager's Report no

City Manager recommends approval.

This is a reimbursement program and will require approval of expenditures through the regular budget process 
with subsequent full reimbursement by MSD.

$197,235 + $35,179 = $232,414 14-40-90_8100

The program is to leverage funds from MSD OMCI Taxing Subdistricts of the University City 
branches of River Des Peres and Deer Creek for eligible stormwater project expenditures in University
 City.

For both OMCI Subdistricts in University City, the recommendation is to choose Option A on the 
required forms to indicate that the City of University City will participate in the reimbursement program
 and will submit an application for stormwater reimbursements when requested. This action would be
 consistent with University City's action for the previous fiscal
year's program.

The MSD Cover Letter for Request for Intent to Participate in the OMCI Program for 2024 and the 
Intent forms for the two applicable OMCI Taxing Subdistricts in University City, River Des Peres and 
Deer Creek, are attached.

Public Safety, Prudent Fiscal Management, Stormwater improvements and flood risk mitigation.

City Manager, Gregrory Rose October 23, 2023

L - 4 - 1



September 14, 2023

stormwater

RE: Request for Intent to Participate in Municipal Reimbursement Program from Operations, 
Maintenance, and Construction Improvement (OMCI) Taxing Subdistricts

Dear Public Officials:

In 2024, the Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District (MSD) is again offering a grant program in certain 
OMCI subdistricts for local agencies to use up to a 50% share of OMCI subdistrict revenue from their 
municipality for their own stormwater purposes.

Included with this letter is a Municipal Certification of Intent to Participate form for each OMCI 
subdistrict in which your municipality is located. As in years past, this form identifies the OMCI 
subdistrict and the 2024 revenue allocation for which the municipality is eligible. It also indicates the 
municipality's unallocated balance from previous years (if applicable) and the total allocation available.

At this time, you only need to identify your municipality's interest in participating in the grant 
reimbursement program for 2024. There is not yet a need to identify the specific uses for the funding. 
Please review and return the form by October 27, 2023. Failure to respond by November 3, 2023 
will forfeit the municipality’s allocation of 2024 funding.

If the municipality intends to apply for a reimbursable project in 2024, please indicate that on the 
included form. Further guidance on the grant application process will be provided in a subsequent 
transmittal before the end of this calendar year. Multiple applications can be submitted to utilize the 
allocation; however, the stormwater use must be within the OMCI boundary from which the 
reimbursement is requested. Additionally, the annual fund allocations must be utilized by the 
municipality within five years or the unutilized portion, more than five years old, will be forfeited from the 
remaining balance.

MSD will use the balance of the OMCI funds, not allocated for grants, for the design and construction of 
MSD identified stormwater capital projects within the OMCI.

If you have further questions, they can be addressed to Jeff Riepe, Engineering Program Planning 
Stormwater Team Lead, at 314-768-6271, JRIEPE@stlmsd.com. MSD thanks you for your support of 
our programs. We look forward to working with you to address stormwater issues within our community.

Sincerely,

Director of Engineering

Attachments: Municipal Certification of Intent to Participate

METROPOLITAN ST. LOUIS SEWER DISTRICT | 2350 MARKET STREET | ST. LOUIS, MO 63103-2555 
(314)768-6260 | WWW.PROJECTCLEARSTL.COM

L - 4 - 2

mailto:JRIEPE@stlmsd.com
http://WWW.PROJECTCLEARSTL.COM


 

 

                                                                                                                                                               

Municipality: City of University City 

Fiscal Year 2024 Allocation: $35,179 
Unencumbered Allocation from previous years $100,066 
Total Allocation Available: $135,245 
 
In 2024 the Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District plans to allocate Deer Creek taxing subdistrict revenue to 
municipalities to reimburse them for costs incurred for eligible stormwater projects.  Eligible stormwater expenditures 
may include the following: storm sewer and inlet construction; drainage improvements; streambank stabilization and 
erosion control projects; clearing under bridges or clearing detention basins; stormwater planning or engineering costs; 
and other stormwater related expenses as determined appropriate by the District.  Activities for MS4 permit compliance 
and routine maintenance are not considered eligible.  Your municipality’s allocation is indicated above, and options are 
listed below. 

Last year the City of University City chose option (A) from the selections below. 

Please indicate your choice for 2024, and sign and return this form no later than October 27, 2023. 

Failure to respond by November 3, 2023, will forfeit your municipality’s allocation for this fiscal year. 
 
Official Contact for Reimbursement Program: Name:  ______________________________________ 

Title:  _______________________________________ 

E-mail:  ______________________________________ 

Phone:  ______________________________________ 

Choose One: 

 (A) City of University City will participate in the reimbursements program this fiscal year and plans to submit an 
application for stormwater reimbursement project in 2024.  Further guidance on the grant application process 
will be provided in a subsequent transmittal before January 1, 2024. 
 

 (B) City of University City will participate in the reimbursements program this fiscal year; however, does not 
anticipate applying for funding before Dec. 31, 2024.  We understand that, if the program continues, allocations 
can only be reserved up to five years before being forfeited.   

 
 (C) City of University City will not participate in the reimbursements program this fiscal year.  Our allocation is 

forfeited and will be used by MSD for other stormwater purposes. 
 

Signature: _____________________________________ Title: ____________________________________ 

Printed Name: _________________________________ Date: ____________________________________ 
 

Return completed form to:    Jeff Riepe, MSD, 2350 Market Street, St. Louis, MO 63103 or jriepe@stlmsd.com

 

Deer Creek OMCI Reimbursements Program 
2024 Municipal Certification of Intent to Participate 

L - 4 - 3

mailto:jriepe@stlmsd.com


Municipality: City of University City 

Fiscal Year 2024 Allocation: $197,235 
Unencumbered Allocation from previous years $555,711 
Total Allocation Available: $752,946 

In 2024 the Metropolitan St. Louis Sewer District plans to allocate University City Branch of RDP taxing subdistrict 
revenue to municipalities to reimburse them for costs incurred for eligible stormwater projects.  Eligible stormwater 
expenditures may include the following: storm sewer and inlet construction; drainage improvements; streambank 
stabilization and erosion control projects; clearing under bridges or clearing detention basins; stormwater planning or 
engineering costs; and other stormwater related expenses as determined appropriate by the District.  Activities for MS4 
permit compliance and routine maintenance are not considered eligible.  Your municipality’s allocation is indicated 
above, and options are listed below. 

Last year the City of University City chose option (A) from the selections below. 

Please indicate your choice for 2024, and sign and return this form no later than October 27, 2023. 

Failure to respond by November 3, 2023, will forfeit your municipality’s allocation for this fiscal year. 

Official Contact for Reimbursement Program: Name:  ______________________________________ 

Title:  _______________________________________ 

E-mail:  ______________________________________

Phone:  ______________________________________ 

Choose One: 

 (A) City of University City will participate in the reimbursements program this fiscal year and plans to submit an
application for stormwater reimbursement project in 2024.  Further guidance on the grant application process
will be provided in a subsequent transmittal before January 1, 2024.

 (B) City of University City will participate in the reimbursements program this fiscal year; however, does not
anticipate applying for funding before Dec. 31, 2024.  We understand that, if the program continues, allocations
can only be reserved up to five years before being forfeited.

 (C) City of University City will not participate in the reimbursements program this fiscal year.  Our allocation is
forfeited and will be used by MSD for other stormwater purposes.

Signature: _____________________________________ Title: ____________________________________ 

Printed Name: _________________________________ Date: ____________________________________ 

Return completed form to:    Jeff Riepe, MSD, 2350 Market Street, St. Louis, MO 63103 or jriepe@stlmsd.com

University City Branch of RDP OMCI Reimbursements Program 
2024 Municipal Certification of Intent to Participate 

L - 4 - 4

mailto:jriepe@stlmsd.com


CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CM20231023-05

CUP 23-04: A Conditional Use Permit application (CUP) to allow for the conversion of the second, third, and fourth
 floors of the existing building located at 608 Kingsland Avenue from 36 efficiency dwelling units to 48 efficiency 
dwelling units.

John L. Wagner Planning and Development/Ward 2
City Manager's Report no

City Manager recommends approval.

N/A

N/A

Staff is of the opinion that the request to allow the conversion of the second, third, and fourth floors 
of the existing building located at 608 Kingsland Avenue from 36 efficiency dwelling units to 48 
efficiency dwelling units would not be detrimental to the surrounding area and recommends approval 
of the request.

Attached are the Staff Report from the August 16, 2023 Plan Commission meeting, amended to 
include for the City Council the Commission's recommendation, as well as Plan Commission 
Transmittal Letter and the application for the Conditional Use Permit that includes the application itself,
 the Owner Authorization for Application, Narrative and Floor Plans & Renderings.

Economic Development, Community Quality of Life.

City Manager, Gregrory Rose October 23, 2023

L - 5 - 1



 
 
August 16, 2023 
 
 
Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
 
RE: Application for Conditional Use Permit, CUP 23-04: A Conditional Use Permit 

(CUP) to allow for the conversion of the second, third, and fourth floors of the 
existing building located at 608 Kingsland Avenue from 36 efficiency dwelling 
units to 48 efficiency dwelling units. 

 
 
Dear Ms. Reese, 
 
At a regularly scheduled meeting, on August 16, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. in the Fifth Floor 
Council Chambers at City Hall, the Plan Commission considered the above-referenced 
application by Jay Schoessel of Architextures SP (owner’s representative), for a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for the conversion of the second, third, and fourth 
floors of the existing building located at 608 Kingsland Avenue from 36 efficiency dwelling 
units to 48 efficiency dwelling units. By a vote of 7 for and 0 against, the Plan Commission 
recommended approval of the application. 

 
 

 
Sincerely, 

 
Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

L - 5 - 2



STAFF REPORT 

City Council 
 

Meeting Date October 23, 2023 

File Number CUP-23-04 

Council District 2 

Location 608 Kingsland Avenue/6687 Delmar Boulevard 

Applicant Jay Schoessel of Architextures SP (Owner’s representative) 

Property Owner Max Sassouni (President), Stone & Alter Real Estate Co 

Request 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for the conversion of the second, 
third, and fourth floors of the existing building located at 608 Kingsland 
Avenue from 36 efficiency dwelling units to 48 efficiency dwelling units 

 

 
Comprehensive Plan Conformance:  
[ X ] Yes  [  ] No      [  ] No reference 
 
Staff Recommendation:    
[  ] Approval [ X ] Approval with Conditions [  ] Denial 
 
Attachments: 

A. Application 
B. Owner Authorization for Application  
C. Narrative 
D. Floor Plans & Renderings 

 
 
Applicant Request 
The applicant, Jay Schoessel of Architextures SP (owner’s representative), is requesting a Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP) to authorize the conversion of the second, third, and fourth floors of the building at 608 
Kingsland Avenue from 36 efficiency dwelling units to 48 efficiency dwelling units.  
 
Existing Property 
The subject property was built in 1925 as a hotel, and the hotel rooms on the second, third, and fourth 
floors were converted into 36 efficiency dwelling units in 1950. Those 36 efficiency dwelling units have 
remained since. The ground floor of the subject property currently contains a small-restaurant (U-City 
Grill), hair salon (Salon K), and a vacant restaurant space (Cicero’s). At this time, there is no proposed 
change to the existing ground floor uses, but the applicant hopes to find another restaurant tenant to fill 
the vacant restaurant space.  
 
The property is zoned Core Commercial (CC) and is within the University City Civic Complex Historic 

L - 5 - 3



District. The site is 9,500 square feet in area (0.22 acres), and the four-story building located on the 
property is coterminous with the property lines, so the footprint of the building is also 9,500 square feet. 
There are no parking spaces on the property, which is also common for buildings of this era, and the 
building does not have rights to any off-site parking spaces. However, directly behind the building is City-
owned parking lot #4 which contains 370 parking spaces available for public use. There is also on-street 
parking available on both sides of Delmar Boulevard.  
 
 

Existing Zoning & Land Use Surrounding Zoning & Land Use 

Existing Zoning:  Core Commercial (CC) North: Core Commercial (CC); Parking lot 
Existing Land Use: Mixed-Use (Residential, 

Restaurant, Retail service 
establishment)   

East: Core Commercial (CC); Retail, 
restaurant, and office 

Proposed Zoning: No change South: Core Commercial (CC); Retail, bank, 
restaurant 

Proposed Land Use: No change West: Public Activity (PA); Library 
 
 

Surrounding Zoning 

 
Analysis 
Land Use and Zoning 
The existing use of 36 efficiency dwelling units, which are located above the ground floor of the building, 
are considered a conditional use in the Core Commercial (CC) zoning district. This use existed prior to the 
City classifying it as a conditional use, and therefore, according to § 400.3050(C), it is a lawful conforming 

608 Kingsland 
Municipal Lot 4 

Regions 
Bank 

U City Library 

Post 
Office 

L - 5 - 4



use. However, because this use is proposed to be intensified (such as by increasing the number of dwelling 
units), a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) is required. 
 
“Efficiency dwelling units” are not defined differently from “dwelling units” in the zoning code, and 
therefore they are not treated differently from a land use and zoning perspective. The City’s property 
maintenance code and building code however, do define “efficiency dwelling units” and establish the 
types of habitable spaces required in dwelling units (see below): 
 

University City Property Maintenance Code §240.020(A)(15): Efficiency Dwelling Unit 
A dwelling unit containing only one habitable room, with or without a separate kitchen space. 
 
University City Property Maintenance Code §240.020(25)(404.5.90): Other habitable spaces 
required 
Every dwelling unit other than an efficiency dwelling unit permitted under the provisions of Section 
404.6 shall contain a living room, dining room and kitchen with floor areas that comply with the 
minimum floor area requirements of Table 404.5 based on the total number of occupants in the 
unit. 
 
International Property Maintenance Code 2018 §404.6: Efficiency unit 
Nothing in this section shall prohibit an efficiency living unit from meeting the following 
requirements: 

1. A unit occupied by not more than one occupant shall have a minimum clear floor area of 
120 square feet (11.2 m2). A unit occupied by not more than two occupants shall have a 
minimum clear floor area of 220 square feet (20.4 m2). A unit occupied by three occupants 
shall have a minimum clear floor area of 320 square feet (29.7 m2). These required areas 
shall be exclusive of the areas required by Items 2 and 3. 

2. The unit shall be provided with a kitchen sink, cooking appliance and refrigeration 
facilities, each having a minimum clear working space of 30 inches (762 mm) in front. Light 
and ventilation conforming to this code shall be provided. 

3. The unit shall be provided with a separate bathroom containing a water closet, lavatory 
and bathtub or shower. 

4. The maximum number of occupants shall be three. 
 
The existing efficiency dwelling units standards and minimum clear floor area of 320 square feet, which 
means they can house up to 3 occupants. With 36 existing units, the maximum occupancy of the building 
would be 108 residents. The proposed 48 efficiency dwelling units have a clear floor area  
 
Comprehensive Plan 
The future land use map of the Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property as “Mixed-Use/Transit 
Oriented Development”. The intended land uses for this category include a combination of commercial, 
professional and/or residential uses should occur or be encouraged. Land use activities in “Mixed-
Use/Transit Oriented Development” should be neighborhood serving or community serving; mixed uses 
may be a single building, a group of buildings or a multiple block district. The proposed use of the subject 
property is consistent with the purpose and intent of this land use category.  
 
Non-Conformities 
The existing building has two non-conforming situations which would be increased by the proposed 
increase in the number of dwelling units: 

L - 5 - 5



1. Minimum off-street parking requirements.  
a. Code standard: Per § 400.2140, when there are fewer than two bedrooms in a dwelling 

unit, 1.5 parking spaces per dwelling unit are required.  
b. Existing non-conformity: With the existing use of 36 efficiency dwelling units, 54 parking 

spaces are required per code. There are currently zero parking spaces for the existing use. 
As mentioned previously, this is not uncommon for buildings which existed prior to the 
City mandating that private property owners build parking.  

c. Proposed increase of non-conformity: With the proposed use of 48 efficiency dwelling 
units, 72 parking spaces are required. Therefore, the proposed use would increase the 
non-conforming parking situation by 18 parking spaces. 
 

2. Average lot area per dwelling unit.  
a. Code standard: Per § 400.1140(C)(1)(b), “elevator apartment buildings” are required to 

provide 500 square feet of lot area per dwelling unit.  
b. Existing non-conformity: With the existing use of 36 efficiency dwelling units across 

9,500 square feet of lot area, the average lot area per dwelling unit is 263.8 square feet.  
c. Proposed increase of non-conformity: With the proposed use of 48 efficiency dwelling 

units across 9,500 square feet of lot area, the average lot area per dwelling unit is 197.9. 
 
For the proposed Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to be recommended by Plan Commission and approved 
by City Council, the increased non-conformities must be addressed. The applicant has proposed a Text 
Amendment (TXT 23-03) to amend two provisions in the zoning code related to the non-conforming 
parking and lot area situations. The proposed Text Amendment and staff analysis is included in the 
memo for TXT 23-03.  
 
If TXT 23-03 is approved by City Council, the proposed increase in dwelling units would not create a non-
conformity in lot area per dwelling unit. Approval of TXT 23-03 would also give the City Council authority 
to allow a greater reduction in parking spaces, via conditional use permit, which would negate the non-
conformity in off-street parking. 
 
Review Criteria 
The applicant is in accordance with the Conditional Use Permit review criteria, as set forth in §400.2710 
of the Zoning Code, and listed below: 
 

1. The proposed use complies with the standards of this Chapter, including performance standards, 
and the standards for motor vehicle-oriented businesses, if applicable, as contained in 
Section 400.2730 of this Article. 

2. The impact of projected vehicular traffic volumes and site access is not detrimental with regard 
to the surrounding traffic flow, pedestrian safety, and accessibility of emergency vehicles and 
equipment. 

3. The proposed use will not cause undue impacts on the provision of public services such as police 
and fire protection, schools, and parks. 

4. Adequate utility, drainage and other such necessary facilities have been or will be provided. 
5. The proposed use is compatible with the surrounding area. 
6. The proposed use will not adversely impact designated historic landmarks or districts. 
7. Where a proposed use has the potential for adverse impacts, sufficient measures have been or 

will be taken by the applicant that would negate, or reduce to an acceptable level, such potentially 
adverse impacts. Such measures may include, but not necessarily be limited to: 

L - 5 - 6

https://www.ecode360.com/28294843#28294843


a. Improvements to public streets, such as provision of turning lanes, traffic control islands, 
traffic control devices, etc. 

b. Limiting vehicular access so as to avoid conflicting turning movements to/from the   site 
and access points of adjacent properties, and to avoid an increase in vehicular traffic in 
nearby residential areas. 

c. Provision of cross-access agreement(s) and paved connections between the applicant's 
property and adjacent property(ies) which would help mitigate traffic on adjacent streets; 

d. Provision of additional screening and landscape buffers, above and beyond the minimum 
requirements of this Chapter; 

e. Strategically locating accessory facilities, such as trash storage, loading areas, and drive-
through facilities, so as to limit potentially adverse impacts on adjacent properties while 
maintaining appropriate access to such facilities and without impeding internal traffic 
circulation; 

f. Limiting hours of operation of the use or certain operational activities of the use (e.g., 
deliveries); and 

g. Any other site or building design techniques which would further enhance neighborhood 
compatibility. 

 
Findings of Fact 
According to §400.2720, the Plan Commission shall not recommend approval of a conditional use permit 
unless it shall, in each specific case, make specific written findings of fact based directly upon the particular 
evidence presented to it supporting the conclusion that the proposed conditional use: 

1. Complies with all applicable provisions of this Chapter; 
2. At the specific location will contribute to and promote the community welfare or convenience; 
3. Will not cause substantial injury to the value of neighboring property; 
4. Is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, neighborhood development plan (if applicable), the 

Olive Boulevard Design Guidelines (if applicable), and any other official planning and development 
policies of the City; and 

5. Will provide off-street parking and loading areas in accordance with the standards contained in 
Article VII of this Chapter. 

 
Process – Required City Approvals 
Plan Commission.  Section 400.2700(C) of the Zoning Code requires that CUP applications be reviewed by 
Plan Commission.  The Plan Commission shall make a recommendation to the City Council for their 
consideration.  A public hearing is required at the Plan Commission meeting. 
 
City Council.  Section 400.2700(D) of the Zoning Code requires that CUP applications be reviewed by City 
Council for final decision, subsequent to a public hearing and recommendation from Plan Commission.  In 
conducting its review, City Council shall consider the staff report, Plan Commission’s recommendation, 
and application to determine if the proposed CUP application meets the requirements of the Zoning Code. 
 
Other Processes 
Historic Preservation Commission. Section 400.1550(A)(5) establishes that the Historic Preservation 
Commission (HPC) act in an advisory capacity to the Department of Planning & Development for 
consideration of conditional use permits for buildings in historic districts, and to make recommendations 
concerning such requests to the Plan Commission. Should the CUP be recommended by Plan Commission 
and subsequently approved by City Council, the proposed renovation shall be reviewed by the HPC prior 
to issuance of a building permit. 

L - 5 - 7



 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit for the property located at 608 Kingsland with 
the following conditions: 
 

1. The recommendation is contingent upon City Council approval of TXT 23-03. 
2. One of the following two actions shall be taken, given that condition #1 above is satisfied:  

a. A 100% reduction in the number of required off-street parking spaces from 72 parking 
spaces to 0 parking spaces, is approved. This approval reflects that the existing property 
has 0 parking spaces currently; the existing 36 dwelling units require 54 parking spaces 
which are not provided; the proposed increase of 12 dwelling units would require an 
additional 18 parking spaces; and that the reduction of parking requirements for this 
property will not adversely impact surrounding properties. This approval reflects the 
City’s desire to incentivize creative reuse of the City’s oldest commercial and mixed-use 
buildings. 

b. A 75% reduction in the number of required off-street parking spaces from 72 parking 
spaces to 18 parking spaces, is approved.  The required 18 parking spaces shall be satisfied 
through use of the City-owned public parking lot #4, with a pro rata fee paid to the City 
for the use of those spaces. This approval reflects that the proposed increase of dwelling 
units will not adversely impact surrounding properties, and that requiring the property 
owner to provide the full 72 parking spaces would be unreasonable and would make the 
proposed reuse of the property unviable. 

 
 
Plan Commission 

TXT 23-03 was also recommended for approval at the August 16, 2023 Plan Commission meeting. In 
reference to number 2 of the Staff Recommendation, “a” was recommended for approval to the City 
Council: 
 
A 100% reduction in the number of required off-street parking spaces from 72 parking spaces to 0 parking 
spaces, is approved. This approval reflects that the existing property has 0 parking spaces currently; the 
existing 36 dwelling units require 54 parking spaces which are not provided; the proposed increase of 12 
dwelling units would require an additional 18 parking spaces; and that the reduction of parking 
requirements for this property will not adversely impact surrounding properties. This approval reflects the 
City’s desire to incentivize creative reuse of the City’s oldest commercial and mixed-use buildings. 
 
 
 

L - 5 - 8



"Q:\WPOFFICE\Permit Applications\Zoning Boards and Commissions Applications\Plan Commission\F-APP.Conditional Use Permit.doc 7.1.23 

APPLICATION FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
Under Article 11 of the Zoning Code of University City, Missouri 

1. Address/Location of Site/Building: ________________________________________________________

2. Zoning District (check one):

  SR  LR  MR   HR   HRO    GC     LC  CC     IC   PA    PD 

3. Applicant’s Name, Corporate or DBA Name, Address, Phone Number, and Email:__________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

4. Applicant’s Interest in the Property:        Owner          Owner Under Contract          Tenant* 

____ Tenant Under Contract*          Other* (explain): 

___________________________________________ 

* Zoning Code Section 400.2680 requires that the application come from one (1) or more of the owners
of record or owners under contract of a lot of record (or zoning lot), or their authorized representative. 
If you are applying as a tenant, tenant under contract or other, you must attach a signed letter from the 
property owner stating that they authorize you to file this Conditional Use Permit application on their 
behalf. 

5. Owner’s Name, Corporate or DBA Name, Address, Phone Number, and Email (if other than Applicant):

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

6. Please state, as fully as possible, how each of the following standards are met or will be met by the
proposed development or use for which this application is being made.  Attach any additional
information to this application form.

a) Complies with all applicable provisions of the University City Zoning Code (e.g. required yards and
setbacks, screening and buffering, signs, etc.). 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

b) At the specific location will contribute to and promote the community welfare or convenience.

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Department of Planning & Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard � University City, Missouri 63130 � 314-505-8500 � Fax:  314-862-3168 

Jay Schoessel, Architextures SP

8725 Big Bend Boulevard, St. Louis, MO 63119          314-961-9500    jay@asp-wbe.com

L - 5 - 9

Maximilian Sassouni
608 Kingsland Avenue, University City, MO 63130

Maximilian Sassouni
Max Sassouni (President), Stone & Alter Real Estate Co.
 
6631 Delmar Blvd, University City, MO 63130

314-727-6264 | maxsassouni@gmail.com


Maximilian Sassouni
Not Applicable — This is an existing building and there are no additions or new signage proposed. 

Maximilian Sassouni
Please see attachment A.

Maximilian Sassouni
X

Maximilian Sassouni
X

Maximilian Sassouni
Architect



"Q:\WPOFFICE\Permit Applications\Zoning Boards and Commissions Applications\Plan Commission\F-APP.Conditional Use Permit.doc 7.1.23 

c) Will not cause substantial injury to the value of neighboring property.

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

d) Is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, neighborhood development plan (if applicable), and any
other official planning and development policies of the City. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

e) Will provide off-street parking and loading areas in accordance with the standards contained in Article
7 of the University City Zoning Code 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

** In addition to this application form, memo detailing the following information is required: 

1) Description of the proposed Conditional Use, in narrative form.  Please include historical information about
the applicant, the company and/or the organization.  Explain why this site was chosen for the proposal, state the 
number of employees that will be working at the site, state the hours of operation, explain other features 
unique to the proposed use and submit any other information that will help the Plan Commission and City 
Council in their decisions.  2) Estimated impact of the conditional use on the surrounding properties and 
adjacent streets, including, but not limited to, average daily and peak hour traffic generation, existing traffic 
volumes of adjacent streets, if available, use of outdoor intercoms, and any other operational characteristics of 
the proposed use that may have impacts on other adjacent or nearby properties.  3) Legal description of the 
property(s) proposed for the Conditional Use Permit when the proposed use involves a substantial addition or 
new construction. 

A Public Hearing before the Plan Commission is required. Notice of such Public Hearing must be published in a 
newspaper of general circulation at least fifteen (15) days in advance.  Upon receipt of a Plan Commission 
Recommendation, the City Council must consider this application and supporting information before a Use 
Permit may be granted.  A fee of $250 must accompany this application. 

_________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
Date       Applicant’s Signature and Title 

__________________________________________________________ 
Representing (if applicable) 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

____________________________ Date Application was Received. 

____________________________ Application Fee in the Amount of $____________________  Receipt #____________________ 

____________________________ Application returned for corrections or additional data, drawings, etc. 

____________________________ Case # _____________created.  

Principal / Owner

L - 5 - 10

Maximilian Sassouni
Please see attachment A.

Maximilian Sassouni
Please see attachment A.

Maximilian Sassouni
Please see attachment A.

Maximilian Sassouni
July 19, 2023



Stone & Alter Real Estate Co. 
6631 Delmar Blvd 
Saint Louis, MO 63130 
 
July 20, 2023 
 
 

RE: 608 Kingsland Avenue – Conditional Use Permit Application dated 7.19.23 

 
To Whom it May Concern: 
 
Stone & Alter Real Estate Co. Authorizes Jay Schoessel from Architextures SP as the 
representative and Applicant on any Conditional Use Permit Application related to 608 
Kingsland Avenue. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Max Sassouni 
President 
Stone & Alter Real Estate Co. 
 

L - 5 - 11



July 20, 2023 

RE: 608 Kingsland Avenue - Narrative Memo for Conditional Use Permit Application dated 07.19.23 

Stone & Alter Real Estate Co., Owner of 608 Kingsland Avenue, is seeking a conditional use permit to convert 
the residential floors 2, 3 and 4 of the building from 36 efficiency dwelling units with a maximum allowed 
occupancy of 3 people per unit to 48 efficiency units with a maximum allowed occupancy of 1 person per 
unit. The dwelling units will be targeted towards graduate students and young professionals, as these units offer 
the privacy this demographic segment seeks after their undergraduate years. 

608 Kingsland Avenue was built in 1925 as a select service hotel and subsequently converted to efficiency 
dwelling units in 1950 by Sidney Stone. Sidney was the original president of Stone & Alter Real Estate Co, 
which has owned and managed the building for about 75 years. Following Sidney’s tenure, Steve Stone took 
over as President from 2013-2022. Steve has also served on the Loop Special Business District in various 
capacities from the late 2000's to 2022. Recently, Max Sassouni has taken over as President of Stone & Alter 
Real Estate Co, and he plans to see through the redevelopment and operation of 608 Kingsland Avenue. There 
are no institutional shareholders in the property—Only individuals and family trusts.  

608 Kingsland Avenue has been largely unimproved, yet well maintained since 1950. It is now vacant due to 
functional obsolescence. Formerly, the street level of this building was home to Cicero's, a neighborhood-
favorite restaurant, bar, and concert venue which drew many customers from near and far to the Delmar Loop. 

This Conditional Use Permit would make a complete redevelopment of the building economically viable. The 
residential redevelopment of this property must precede commercial occupancy on the street level (former 
Cicero's) because all the building systems must be replaced while the building is vacant. Retail brokers have 
indicated to the Owner that the former Cicero's space will become attractive once the residential portion of the 
building is redeveloped.  

Currently, the 6600 block of the Delmar Loop has been experiencing a precipitous decline in commercial 
activity with most storefronts closed. The perception of vacancy has deterred new and creative operators from 
starting new businesses that are central to the vibrancy of the Loop. The redevelopment of 608 Kingsland 
Avenue will have a positive impact on the surrounding properties, businesses, and citizens of University City by 
kickstarting the revitalization of the western portion of the Delmar Loop. 

The Owner is not seeking any real estate tax credits, incentives, or abatements from University City to complete 
this redevelopment. 

Sincerely 

Jay Schoessel 
Owner - Architect 
Architextures SP 

L - 5 - 12



L - 5 - 13



L - 5 - 14



L - 5 - 15



L - 5 - 16



L - 5 - 17



L - 5 - 18



L - 5 - 19



L - 5 - 20



L - 5 - 21



L - 5 - 22



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

UB20231023-01

Admission into Missouri Fire Fighter Critical Illness Pool

William Hinson    Fire Chief Fire
Unfinished business Bill 9428 yes

The City Manager recommends adoption of ordinance for firefighters to be admitted into the 
Critical Illness (cancer) pool.

The annual cost will fluctuate around $7,000 annually. This program has the potential to lower workers comp 
insurance in the future as the award from this is deducted from payouts by workers comp.  This is a budgeted item.

$7,000

1-35-25-6010 1-35-25-6010

This is a statewide program that allows Cities and Districts to enroll it's firefighters in a 
cancer trust (#1 illness of firefighters).  This reduces the red tape and expedites payment for 
cancer treatment for cancers that are known to be prevalent in firefighters. 

This is a state backed pool that eases the burden on workers comp and makes certain 
cancers presumptive with a payout to assist in treatment of such cancers. This is a budgeted 
item.  Please see related attachments for full details

MFFCIP Program Overview 
Bill 9528

Health and Wellness of Employees 
Public Safety

City Manager, Gregrory Rose 10/23/2023

M - 1- 1



Missouri Fire Fighters
Critical Illness Pool

1
M - 1- 2



Agenda

• Program Summary
• Process
• Organizational Chart
• Covered Cancers
• Eligibility 
• Rates for Three Years
• Benefits for Employers
• Benefits for Covered Individuals
• How to Join
• Frequently asked Questions

4/13/2022 2
M - 1- 3



Program Summary

3
M - 1- 4



Process
Legislators in Jefferson City asked interested parties—unions, chiefs, and the 
insurance community—to discuss and put forth parameters that all could agree on 
with regard to providing cancer benefits to firefighters in Missouri. 
Several committees were convened over the last four years to meet the above goal, 
settling on the long-term solution of building a Pool similar to what was 
accomplished in Colorado in 2014 with Heart and expanded to Cancer in 2017. 
In 2021 Senate Bill 45 was introduced to the Missouri legislature with the support 
of fire operation’s labor and management to implement a solution that would see 
the majority of $5,000,000 of public funds granted expended on a Cancer Award 
Program going to the benefit of Missouri firefighters through a self-insured Pool. 
Sixty percent of the funding requested will go toward capitalization; thirty percent 
to rate subsidy; and ten percent for cancer prevention and early detection.

4/13/2022 4
M - 1- 5



Organization Chart

5
M - 1- 6



Organization Chart

6
M - 1- 7



Covered Cancers

• Bladder
• Brain 
• Colon
• Esophagus
• Kidney
• Lung

• Melanoma
• Mesothelioma
• Multiple myeloma
• NHL
• Prostate
• Rectal

• Skin
• Stomach
• Testicular
• Thyroid
• Breast

7
M - 1- 8



Eligibility

• Volunteer & Part Time -5 years of active service with minimum of 24 
hours training

• Full Time – 5 years of minimum 1600 hours annually             
• Member determines who is Elligible within the Member’s direct 

provision of fire prevention services. May include Dispatch, 
Mechanics, Community Outreach, Fire Investigators

• Medical Examination some time at or after hire and before the 
diagnosis 

4/13/2022 8
M - 1- 9



Rate for first three years

4/13/2022 9
M - 1- 10



Benefits to Employers
• Cap on Liabilities – Participation places a $100,000, $200,000 or 

$300,000 per claim payout depending on limit chosen
• Retirees up to fifteen (15) yrs after service, or obtaining the age of 70 
• Lower experience modification factors
• Lower Workers’ Compensation Primary and Excess Rates – In the long 

term cancer claims are not included in rate making
• Improved Employee Relations – Improves relations between 

firefighters and management as no invasive investigation and 
litigation over a claim being job-related or not

10
M - 1- 11



Benefits to Firefighters
• No more long waits for benefits – Benefits payable upon confirmation 

of diagnosis and payment is dispensed within ten (10) days of receipt 
of completed documentation

• Scaled awards based on condition – Firefighters will receive payments 
based on the type and stage of their cancer, not based on court 
adjudication

• Recognition of service – Cancer will be considered a line of duty event 
for the purpose of benefit payments with out investigation or a 
determination as to actually being job related 

• Tax-free benefits – Except for rehabilitation payments, awards in the 
Cancer Program are not taxable

11
M - 1- 12



How to Join- See INSTRUCTIONS AND CHECKLIST TO JOIN THE POOL 

• Quick Calculator is provided for rough calculation of the current year contribution. 
• Proposals can be provided upon receipt of your estimated number of eligible full-time, 

part-time and volunteer employees. 
• Submit our quote form, www.mffcip.org , and a representative will reach out to you. 
• Completion of the Census Roster, listing your actual eligible firefighters, is required 

before binding. Coverage is limited to declared individual(s) listed on the roster, except 
newly eligible after enrollment. 

• The Required Actions for Prevention of Cancer must be implemented, maintained, and 
renewed by annual acknowledgment by the Chief. 

• The District Resolution or Municipal Ordinance accepting the Pool Agreement  
• The Trust and Pool Agreement must be signed and received by the Pool Administrator 

prior to participation being effective. 
• All members must designate a Member Representative and Alternate Representative

4/13/2022 12
M - 1- 13

http://www.mffcip.org/


Frequently Asked Questions

13
M - 1- 14



What is the Cancer Award Program?

This program is a nontaxable accident coverage benefit intended to 
supplement or pay for the out-of-pocket expenses and provide 
additional compensation for other benefits such as experimental 
treatment as best determined by the fire fighter. 

The details of this program follow:

14
M - 1- 15



1. Pool formation will use existing MO enabling statute section 537.620 within the 
Uniform Individual Accident and Sickness Insurance Law to form the Pool.

2. Cash awards are paid within 10 days of a completed application to include the 
attending physician’s diagnosis.

3. Up to $4,000 disbursements are made semi-monthly based on schedule of 
benefits.

4. Payments are made before sick leave and vacation time need to be used.
5. Diagnosis for the purposes of this program with the employers’ agreement will 

be treated as an at-work occurrence for the purpose of paying applicable 
benefits but not prompting a Workers’ Compensation work related claim.

6. This program coverage is technically not disability insurance; it is accident 
coverage.

7. This benefit does not exclude the filing of a Workers’ Compensation claim; 
however, any payments made under this program will be offset under 
Workers’ Compensation.

15
M - 1- 16



What is the organizational structure?
• MFFCIP is owned and operated by Missouri Fire operations appointed 

board. Stakeholders from numerous organizations address all issues 
and provide guidance. A steering committee comprised of 
representatives from fire operations, medical professionals and 
insurance industry also provides input. 

• Following implementation, the Board has the option to expand to 
include representation from HR, risk managers, finance, and others as 
appropriate. 

16
M - 1- 17



What cancers are covered?
• Seventeen specific cancers are covered:
Bladder, Brain, Colon, Esophagus, Kidney, Lung, Melanoma, 
Mesothelioma, Multiple myeloma, NHL, Prostate, Rectal, Skin, 
Stomach, Breast, Testicular, and Thyroid.

• Other cancers or diseases which adversely affect fire fighters can be 
added by the Board as new studies or findings are published. 

• Smoking or the use of tobacco products reduces benefits by 25%. 

17
M - 1- 18



What are my choice of limits and cost options?
• Maximum Limits available will be $100K, $200K, or $300K. The fully 

burdened cost per full-time fire fighter is roughly $100, $200, or $300 
annually prior to subsidies in the first three years. 

• Part-time and volunteer rates are roughly 70% the cost of full-time 
rate before subsidies.

18
M - 1- 19



How to Join

The Instructions and Checklist to Join the Pool can be found on our 
website: www.mffcip.org

Please use the QR code to access these instructions as well as the five 
(5) documents that must be received by the Pool Administrator.

19
M - 1- 20

http://www.mffcip.org/


Meet Our Team

Joe DePaepe, CPCU, CIC
Trust Administrator

jdepaepe@mcgriff.com
D: 503-943-6628
M: 503-784-2721

Lei Shi, CRM, CIC, AU
Client Service and Billing

lshi@mcgriff.com
D: 503-943-6372

Jenniffer J. Alvarado
Client Service

jalvarado@mcgriff.com
D: 503-943-6632
M: 503-807-0607

Paula Lowder
Claims Consultant

paula.lowder@mcgriff.com
D: 719-761-3282
M: 719-761-3282

20
M - 1- 21

mailto:jdepaepe@mcgriff.com
mailto:chammond@mcgriff.com
mailto:jalvarado@mcgriff.com
mailto:paula.lowder@mcgriff.com


Thank You!

21
M - 1- 22

http://www.mffcip.org/


INTRODUCED BY: Councilmember Steve McMahon DATE: October 9, 2023 

BILL NO.  9528 ORDINANCE NO.   

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, 
MISSOURI TO PARTICIPATE IN THEMISSOURI FIRE FIGHTERS  
CRITICAL ILLNESS TRUST AND POOL. 

WHEREAS, the Missouri Fire Fighters Critical Illness Trust and Pool ("MFFCIT") is a voluntary critical illness 
benefits pool, formed as a nonprofit corporation on February 15, 2022; and  

WHEREAS, political subdivisions such as the City of University City, Missouri ("City") may join MFFCIT and use 
public funds to pay any necessary assessments, pursuant to Sections 320.400 and 537.620 RSMo; and  

WHEREAS, covered individuals include firefighters, emergency medical technicians, and telecommunicators as 
defined in Section 650.320(3) RSMo; and   

WHEREAS, covered critical illnesses include cancer and posttraumatic stress injuries; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of MFFCIT is considered a public governmental body and subject to Chapter 
610 RSMo (Sunshine Law); and  

WHEREAS, the City Council believes it is in the best interests of the City to join MFFCIT. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  The City hereby declares its intent to become a member of MFFCIT and to participate therein upon 
approval of the Board of Trustees of MFFCIT.  

Section 2.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute all documents, including the Trust and Pool 
Agreement, and take such actions as the City Manager may deem necessary or desirable to carry out the intent 
of this ordinance.  

Section 3.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as provided by law. 

PASSED and ADOPTED this _______ day of October, 2023. 

________________________________ 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
 CITY CLERK 

CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 

________________________________ 
 CITY ATTORNEY 

M - 1- 23



M - 1- 24



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

UB20231023-02

Education Premises Identification System (EPIS)

 Chief William Hinson Fire
 Unfinished business Bill 9529  yes

The City Manager recommends approval of EPIS, which will assist Police and Fire in rapid 
deployment at Educational buildings. 

No fiscal impact for the City of University City

$0

n/a

This bill has already been passed by St. Louis County and Most incorporated areas in St. 
Louis county. It is intended to assist Police and Fire to rapidly identify the locations of 
emergencies in Schools in order to reduce loss of property and life in times of crisis.

This has been developed to assist Fire and Police in rapidly deploying in a building to reduce 
the loss of life and property in situations such as a school shooting or a fire.  The county 
wide adoption of this bill is the goal.  It will allow not only U City units, but any other outside 
units to be able to rapidly identify where they are needed in a building.  It reduces risk of 
units deploying in the wrong areas and confusion of their location inside the buildings.

Bill 9529 Premises identification and structure.

Public safety 
Employee health and wellness

City Manager, Gregrory Rose 10/23/2023

M - 2 - 1



INTRODUCED BY: Councilmember Aleta Klein DATE: October 9, 2023 

BILL NO.  9529 ORDINANCE NO.   

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 205.020 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF 
THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO ADDITIONS, 
INSERTIONS, DELETIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO THE INTERNATIONAL FIRE 
CODE, 2018 EDITION, BY ADDING PROVISIONS ON PREMISES IDENTIFICATION 
FOR EDUCATIONAL GROUP BUILDINGS.  

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.    Section 205.020 of the Municipal Code of the City of University City, Missouri, relating 
to additions, insertions, deletions and amendments to the International Fire Code, 2018 Edition, is 
hereby amended by adding provisions on premises identification for educational group buildings, so 
that said section, as so amended, shall read as follows: 

Section 205.020. Additions, Insertions, Deletions and Amendments. 

A. 
NFPA Standards. All now current or future NFPA Standards shall be referenced and utilized with 
the exception of NFPA 101, and incorporated herein, by the Fire Marshal, in the interpretation of 
Sections of the IFC and other codes in order to properly enforce this Section. 

B.   
The following numbered Sections and Subsections of the International Fire Code, 2018 Edition, as 
published by the International Code Council, Inc., are hereby amended by additions, insertions, 
deletions and changes so that such Sections and Subsections shall read as follows: 
1.   
(CHAPTER 1 SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION) — (SECTION 101 GENERAL). 

101.1 Title. These regulations shall be known as the Fire Code of the City of University City, 
Missouri, hereinafter referred to as "this code." 

2.   
(SECTION 103 DEPARTMENT OF FIRE PREVENTION). 
103.1 General. The Bureau of Fire Prevention is established within the jurisdiction under the 
direction of the Code Official. The function of the bureau shall be the implementation, 
administration and enforcement of the provisions of this code. 
103.2 Appointment. Enforcement Official. It shall be the duty and the responsibility of the Chief 
Executive Officer, designated as the Fire Chief, to enforce the provisions of this code. The Fire Chief 
shall be the Code Official. 
103.2.1 Bureau organization. The Bureau of Fire Prevention shall operate under the direct 
supervision of the Fire Marshal. The Fire Marshal shall be a uniformed member and chief officer of 
the Fire Department and operate under the direct supervision of the Fire Chief.  

M - 2 - 2

https://ecode360.com/print/UN3457?guid=28289854#28289854
https://ecode360.com/37444333#37444333
https://ecode360.com/37444334#37444334
https://ecode360.com/37444335#37444335
https://ecode360.com/37444336#37444336


The Fire Marshal shall be appointed on the basis of his/her administrative abilities and qualifications 
to understand, interpret and enforce the technical provisions of this code. All uniformed members of 
the Fire Department shall be considered members of the Bureau of Fire Prevention. The Fire 
Marshal may assign or appoint technical assistants, inspectors or other employees that may be 
necessary for the effective and efficient operation of the Bureau of Fire Prevention. All appointments 
to the bureau shall be made in conformance with the provisions of the Municipal Code. 
103.3 Bureau members code enforcement duties and authority. The Fire Marshal, and all 
properly assigned or appointed members of the Bureau of Fire Prevention shall have the duty to 
assist the Fire Chief in the administration and enforcement of the provisions of this code. As agents 
of the Fire Chief, all properly assigned or appointed members of the Bureau of Fire Prevention shall 
have the authority to exercise all the powers of the Code Official as detailed within this code. 
  
3.   
(SECTION 104 GENERAL AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITIES). 
104.6 Official records. The Fire Code Official shall keep official records as required by Sections 
104.6.1 through 104.6.4. Such official records shall be retained for the period required for retention 
of public records. 
104.11.4 Compliance with orders. A person shall not willfully fail or refuse to comply with any 
lawful order or direction of the Fire Official or interfere with the compliance attempts of another 
individual. 
  
4.   
(SECTION 105 PERMITS). 
105.1.2 Types of permits 

There shall be two (2) types of permits as follows: 

1. Operational permit. An operational permit allows the applicant to conduct an operation or a 
business for which a permit is required by Section 105.6 for either: 
1.1. A prescribed period as determined by the Fire Code Official for operations that only 

occur once or are not ongoing. 
1.2. For ongoing operations, the operational permit shall be issued for a period not 

exceeding a year or until revoked. 
2. Construction permit. A construction permit allows the applicant to install or modify systems 

and equipment for which a permit is required by Section 105.7. Construction permits will be 
administered by the applicable Building Code, Residential Code, Mechanical Code, Fuel Gas 
Code, Electrical Code, Plumbing Code, Existing Building Code, Energy Conservation Code, or 
Swimming Pool and Spa Code. 

105.6.51  Premises identification. An operational permit is required. The plan shall be submitted and  
reviewed annually by August 1 of each year. Premises identification permits shall be issued at no charge. 
105.6.90 Places of education. An operational permit is required to operate or occupy an educational  
occupancy. 

  

105.6.91 Places of high residency or transient residency. An operational permit is required to operate  
or occupy any "R-1" occupancy building, "R-2" occupancy building with more than eight (8) dwelling  
units, and "R-4" occupancy buildings. 

  

105.6.92 Places of institutional care. An operational permit is required to operate or occupy an institutional  
occupancy. 

  

M - 2 - 3

https://ecode360.com/37444337#37444337
https://ecode360.com/37444338#37444338


105.7.26  Premises identification. A construction permit is required to install premises identification in  
accordance with Section 408. Premises identification plans shall be submitted for review and approval before  
a permit will be issued. Premises identification permits shall be issued at no charge. 
  
5.   
(SECTION 106 FEES). 
106.2 Schedule of permit fees. A fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with 
the following schedule: 
1. Construction permit fees shall be paid as set forth in the Building Code, Residential Code, 

Mechanical  
Code, Fuel Gas Code, Electrical Code, Plumbing Code or Energy Conservation Code, and the fee  
shall include the cost of ensuring compliance with this code. 

2. Operational permit applications shall include an application fee of thirty-five dollars ($35.00). 
3. Trips to the property where an inspection could not be performed because the work was not ready, 

the  
area of inspection could not be accessed, or similar situation, shall be billed at thirty-five dollars 
($35.00) per missed inspection. 

4. Additional inspections in excess of the first inspection and one (1) re-inspection shall be billed at 
thirty-five dollars ($35.00) per inspection. 

  
6.   
(SECTION 109 BOARD OF APPEALS). 
109.1 General. University City Building Code Section 113 shall be applicable for all appeals 
involving this code. 
109.2 Limitations on authority. Delete in its entirety. 
109.3 Qualifications. Delete in its entirety. 
  
7.   
(SECTION 110 VIOLATIONS). 
110.4 Violation penalties. Persons who shall violate a provision of this code or shall fail to comply 
with any of the requirements thereof or who shall erect, install, alter or repair or do work in violation 
of the approved construction documents or directive of the Fire Code Official, or of a permit or 
certificate issued under the provision of this code, shall be guilty of an ordinance violation, 
punishable as provided in Section 100.190 of the University City Municipal Code. Each day that a 
violation continues after due notice has been served shall be deemed a separate offense. 
  
8.   
(SECTION 112 STOP WORK ORDER). 
112.4 Failure to comply. Any person who shall continue any work after having been served with a 
stop work order, except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation or 
unsafe condition, shall be guilty of an ordinance violation, punishable as provided in 
Section 100.190 of the University City Municipal Code. 
  
9.   
(SECTION 114 UNSAFE CONDITIONS). 
114.1 General. Whenever the Code Official shall find in any structure or upon any premises 
dangerous or hazardous conditions or materials as follows, the Code Official shall order such 
hazardous conditions or materials to be removed or remedied in accordance with the provisions of 

M - 2 - 4

https://ecode360.com/37444339#37444339
https://ecode360.com/37444340#37444340
https://ecode360.com/28328379#28328379
https://ecode360.com/37444341#37444341
https://ecode360.com/28289102#28289102
https://ecode360.com/37444342#37444342
https://ecode360.com/28289102#28289102
https://ecode360.com/37444343#37444343


this code: 
1. Hazardous conditions liable to cause or contribute to the spread of fire in or on said premises or 

structure or endanger the occupants thereof; 
2. Conditions that interfere with the efficiency or operation of any fire protection equipment or 

system; 
3. Obstructions to or on fire escapes, stairs, passageways, doors or windows, that are liable to 

interfere with the egress of occupants or the operation of the Fire Department in case of fire; 
4. Accumulations of dust or waste material in air-conditioning or ventilating systems or grease in 

kitchen or other exhaust ducts; 
5. Accumulations of grease on kitchen cooking equipment, or oil, grease or dirt upon, under or 

around any mechanical equipment; 
6. Accumulations of rubbish, waste, paper, boxes, shavings or excessive storage of any combustible 

material; 
7. Hazardous conditions arising from defective or improperly utilized or installed electrical wiring, 

equipment or appliances; 
8. Hazardous conditions arising from defective or improperly installed equipment for handling or 

using combustible, explosive or otherwise hazardous materials; 
9. Dangerous or unlawful amounts of combustible, explosive or otherwise hazardous materials; 
10. All equipment, materials, processes or operations that are in violation of the provisions or intent 

of this code; and 
11. Vehicles or equipment that impairs or obstructs Fire Department access to an occupied structure 

hindering or delaying Fire Department operations in case of an emergency. 
  

10.    (SECTION 404 FIRE SAFETY, EVACUATION AND LOCKDOWN PLANS). 
  
404.5 Premises identification. Premises identification shall be in accordance with Section 408. 
  
11. (SECTION 408 PREMISES IDENTIFICATION). 
  
408.1 Where required. New and existing buildings of Educational Group E shall be identified in 
accordance with Sections 408.2 through 408.5. 
Exception: Previously approved signage shall be permitted until July 31, 2024. 
  
408.2      Zone identification. Zones shall be identified in accordance with Sections 408.2.1 through 
408.2.4.   
  
408.2.1 Zone designation.  All occupiable structures on the premises shall be divided into sections 
or designated a specific zone agreeable to the Fire Code Official.   
  
408.2.2 Zone color assignment. The zones shall be assigned a primary or secondary color. Other 
colors may be used/added if approved by the Fire Code Official. (Recommended, not required, 
assign the zone with the main entrance RED and proceed clockwise with ORANGE, YELLOW, 
GREEN, BLUE, PURPLE)  
  
408.2.3 Zone level consistency. Zone color assignment shall be consistent on all grades of 
multilevel structures.   
  

M - 2 - 5



408.3 Corridors identification. Corridors inside of a zone shall be identified by the color assigned 
per Section 408.2.   
  
408.3.1 Striping. A solid color representative of the designated zone shall be applied on the walls on 
both sides of the corridor.   
  
408.3.2 Striping size and location. The stripe shall be no less than 4” AFF and no more than 36” 
AFF. and a minimum of 4 inches (102 mm) in width. The stripe shall be continuous in length of the 
corridor and terminate at the exit or the transition to a different zone. (In corridors with lockers, 
displays, or other fixed obstructions an alternative location may be used as approved.) 
  
408.3.3 Directional identification. Colored arrows representative of the zone shall be provided at 
intersecting corridors. The arrow shall be a minimum of 1” in width and 8” in length. The arrows 
shall be affixed to the corridor wall at least 4”AFF and no more than 36”AFF. Other heights may be 
used as approved.   
  
  

  
  
408.4 Room and area identification. All occupiable rooms and areas within a zone shall be 
identified in accordance with Sections 408.4.1 through 408.4.5, with numbers or labels in 
accordance with Section 408.2.   
  
  
408.4.1 Room and area designation. Rooms and areas shall be identified by their current known 
number or known descriptive name (i.e., Gym, Library).   
  
408.4.2 Room and area color assignment. Rooms and areas shall be assigned the color of the zone 
they occupy. 
  
408.4.3 Doors. Doors shall be identified with signage conforming to Sections 408.4.3.1 through 
408.4.3.2. Doors shall be labeled in Arabic numbers and alphabetical letters. Numbers shall not be 
spelled out. Where required, doors shall have signage both inside and out. 
  
408.4.3.1 Egress/room side of door. A sign with the room number in the assigned zone color shall 
be affixed over the door and shall be readily visible from inside the room. The numbers shall be in 
white on a background of the zone color. Each character shall be not less than 4 inches (102 mm) 

M - 2 - 6



high with a minimum stroke width of 1/2 inch (13 mm). 
  

  
  
408.4.3.2 Ingress/corridor side of door. Room numbers shall be placed above the door and shall be 
readable from all angles from the hallway or area to which they open. The numbers shall be in white 
on a background of the zone color. Each character shall be not less than 4 inches (102 mm) high with 
a minimum stroke width of 1/2 inch (13 mm). 

  
  
408.4.4 Windows. Signs with the room number in the designated zone color shall be affixed to the 
interior surface of the left most facing window and shall be visible from the exterior of the building. 
  
408.4.4.1 Placement. Room numbers shall be placed on the left-most window when viewed from 
outside the building. 
  
408.4.4.2 Number size/color. The numbers shall be in white on a background of the zone color. 
Each character shall be not less than 6 inches (152 mm) high with a minimum stroke width of 1/2 
inch (13 mm), and visible from ground level. 
  
  

M - 2 - 7



  
  

  
  
408.5       Exterior door identification. All doors on the exterior of a building that provide access 
into the building shall be identified in accordance with Sections 408.5.1 through 408.5.6. 
  
408.5.1 Number designation. All exterior doors shall be numbered in a sequential order starting 
with the main entrance (office door/public entrance). The main entrance shall always be #1. 
Subsequent doors shall be numbered in sequential order in a clockwise manner. 
  

  

M - 2 - 8



               
408.5.2 Number color. The color of the number shall represent the zone color per Section 408.3. 
Door numbers shall contrast with their background. 
               
408.5.3 Number size. Door numbers shall be Arabic numbers and alphabetical letters. Numbers 
shall not be spelled out. Each character shall be not less than 6 inches (152 mm) high with a 
minimum stroke width of 1/2 inch (13 mm). 
  
408.5.4 Number placement. Door numbers shall be placed at the top center of the door. Exception: 
Roll-up doors the numbers shall be located between ½ and ¾ of the height of the door adjacent to the 
door opening. 
  

  
  
     
408.5.5 Exterior access to corridors. Doors that provide access directly to a corridor shall be 
marked with the door number on a retro-reflective block in the corridor zone color per Section 
408.3.   
  
  

  
408.5.6 Exterior access to rooms. Doors that provide access directly into a room shall be marked 
with the room number or descriptive name per Section 408.4.1 directly below the exterior door 
identification number. 
  
  
While not required, facilities are highly encouraged to place large maps showing the rooms/hallway 
identifiers near the main entrance for use by emergency response personnel. 
  
  

M - 2 - 9



  
  
  
  
 

 
  
 

sample 

 

 

M - 2 - 10



12.   
(SECTION 506 KEY BOXES). 
506.3 Location of Knox Key Box. The key box shall be located between four (4) and six (6) feet 
above finished grade but can be located at other heights at the discretion of the Fire Marshal and 
his/her designee. A Knox key box shall be required on all commercial buildings that have fire alarm 
systems and/or sprinkler systems. 
  
13.   
(SECTION 510 EMERGENCY RESPONDER RADIO COVERAGE). 
510.4 Radio Signal Strength. The building shall be considered to have acceptable emergency 
responder radio coverage when signal strength measurements in ninety-five percent (95%) of all 
areas on each floor of the building meet the signal strength requirements in Sections 510.4.1.1 and 
510.4.1.2, or method approved by the Fire Code Official. Emergency responder radio coverage 
systems shall be isolated to the public safety spectrum only and shall be approved by the local or 
regional emergency communication authority. 
  
14.   
(SECTION 606 — ELEVATOR OPERATION, MAINTENANCE AND FIRE SERVICE 
KEYS). 
606.8.5 Elevator Car to Accommodate Ambulance Stretcher. All new elevators, unless approved 
by the Fire Marshal, shall be designed to accommodate an ambulance stretcher. The doors to the 
elevator shall open so that the entire stretcher can be rolled into the elevator car in the full, flat 
position. The elevator car shall be of such a size and arrangement to accommodate an ambulance 
stretcher twenty-four (24) inches by eighty-four (84) inches (610 mm by 2,134 mm) with not less 
than five (5) inch (127 mm) radius corners, in the horizontal, open position and shall be identified by 
the international symbol for emergency medical services (star of life). The symbol shall not be less 
than three (3) inches (76 mm) high and shall be placed inside on both sides of the hoist-way door 
frame. 
  
15.   
(CHAPTER 56 EXPLOSIVES AND FIREWORKS) — (SECTION 5601 GENERAL). 
5601.1.3 Fireworks. The possession, manufacture, storage, sale, handling and use of fireworks are 
prohibited. 
Exceptions: 
1. Storage and handling of fireworks as allowed in Section 5604. 
2. Manufacture, assembly and testing of fireworks as allowed in Section 5605. 
3. The use of fireworks for fireworks displays as allowed in Section 5608. 
  
16.   
(SECTION 5609 TEMPORARY STORAGE OF CONSUMER FIREWORKS). 
5609.1 General. Delete in its entirety. 
  
Section 2.    This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as provided by 
law. 
 

M - 2 - 11

https://ecode360.com/37444344#37444344
https://ecode360.com/37444345#37444345
https://ecode360.com/37444346#37444346
https://ecode360.com/37444347#37444347
https://ecode360.com/37444348#37444348


 
PASSED and ADOPTED this _______ day of October, 2023. 

 
________________________________ 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 

  CITY CLERK 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 

 CITY ATTORNEY 
  

 

M - 2 - 12



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

UB20231009-03

TXT 23-03 – Application for Text Amendment to allow changes to the parking standards for existing mixed-use 
buildings and to exempt existing mixed-use buildings in the Core Commercial (CC) zoning district from the minimum lot 
area per dwelling unit standard.

John L. Wagner Planning and Development
Unfinished Business Bill 9530 yes

City Manager concurs with the Plan Commission and recommends approval.

N/A

N/A

Staff is of the opinion that the request for a Text Amendment to allow changes to the parking 
standards for existing mixed-use buildings and to exempt existing mixed-use buildings in the 
Core Commercial (CC) zoning district from the minimum lot area per dwelling unit standard 
would not be detrimental to the surrounding area and is consistent with quality planning 
concepts for urban districts, and recommends approval of the request. 

Attached are the Staff Report from the August 16, 2023 Plan Commission meeting, amended to 
include for the City Council the Commission's recommendation and the subsequent 
recommendation from the City Attorney, as well as Plan Commission Transmittal Letter, the 
application for the Text Amendment, as well as a Draft Bill.

City Manager, Gregrory Rose October 23, 2023

M - 3 - 1



 
 
August 16, 2023 
 
 
Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
 
RE: Application for Text Amendment TXT 23-03 – A request to allow changes to the 

parking standards for existing mixed-use buildings and to exempt existing mixed-
use buildings in the Core Commercial (CC) zoning district from the minimum lot 
area per dwelling unit standard. 

 
Dear Ms. Reese, 
 
At a regularly scheduled meeting, on August 16, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. at the Heman Park 
Community Center, the Plan Commission considered the above-referenced application 
by Max Sassouni for a Text Amendment to allow for a reduction in the number of required 
off-street parking spaces for older, existing commercial or mixed-use buildings; and to 
exempt existing mixed-use buildings in the Core Commercial (CC) zoning district from the 
minimum lot area per dwelling unit standard. By a vote of 7 for and 0 against, the Plan 
Commission recommended approval of the application. 

 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

M - 3 - 2



MEMO 

City Council 
 

Meeting Date October 9, 2023 

File Number TXT 23-03 

Council District n/a 

Applicant Max Sassouni (President), Stone & Alter Real Estate Co 

Request Approval of Text Amendment to (1) allow for a reduction in the number 
of required off-street parking spaces for older, existing commercial or 
mixed-use buildings; and (2) exempt existing mixed-use buildings in the 
Core Commercial (CC) zoning district from the minimum lot area per 
dwelling unit standard 

 

 
Comprehensive Plan Conformance:  
[ X ] Yes  [  ] No      [  ] No reference 
 
Staff Recommendation:    
[  ] Approval [ X ] Approval with Conditions [  ] Denial 
 
Attachments: 

A. Applicant letter with proposed text amendment language 
 
 
Applicant Request 
The applicant, Max Sassouni (President, Stone & Alter Real Estate Co), is requesting approval of Text 
Amendment to (1) allow for a reduction in the number of required off-street parking spaces for older, 
existing commercial or mixed-use buildings; and (2) exempt existing mixed-use residential buildings in the 
Core Commercial (CC) zoning district from the minimum lot area per dwelling unit standard. 
 
Zoning Code Text Proposed to be Amended 
See attached for the applicant’s letter and proposed text amendment language. 
 
Staff Analysis 
There are two provisions in the proposed Text Amendment. The first provision would create greater 
flexibility in the zoning code for the reuse of older existing commercial or mixed-use buildings. This 
flexibility would encourage the reuse and redevelopment of older buildings in University City. As is 
currently written, the zoning code allows through conditional use permit procedure up to 25% reduction 
in the number of required spaces for the reuse of commercial buildings existing prior to the effective 
date of the zoning code (§ 400.2130(B)). However, the 25% reduction does not adequately account for 
common changes of use of existing commercial buildings. For example, a 1,000 square foot retail space 
requires 5 parking spaces, while 1,000 square feet of restaurant space requires 14 parking spaces. Using 
this example, if someone wished to open a restaurant in a 1,000-square-foot space that was formerly 

M - 3 - 3



occupied by retail (a common reuse case), and the property had zero parking spaces, the reuse would 
not be allowed because it would require a 64% reduction in the parking requirements. The restaurant 
space would have to either purchase additional property to build those parking spaces, or if they are 
within 500 ft of a public parking lot, they could pay pro rata for the balance of the parking spaces they 
cannot provide. Both situations are costly and would discourage what would otherwise be appropriate 
and desirable reuses. If this proposed amendment to the code were approved, the Plan Commission and 
City Council would retain their authority to review and determine how much reduction is appropriate 
through conditional use permit procedure. 
 
For the second provision addressing the minimum lot area per dwelling unit standard for elevator 
apartment buildings, there are two proposed options. The first option would create an exception for 
developments existing in the Core Commercial (CC) district prior to the effective date of the zoning 
code. This would encourage reinvestment in and reuse of older elevator apartment buildings in the Core 
Commercial (CC) district. This option would not impact new elevator apartment building developments, 
nor existing elevator apartments outside of the CC district. The second option would be to adjust the 
definition of “elevator-type dwellings” in Article II Definitions, to acknowledge that older, mixed-use 
residential buildings have a different character and purpose from the City’s definition of elevator-type 
dwellings, which have suburban-style dimensional standards. There is some ambiguity as to whether the 
subject property would meet the current definition of elevator-type dwelling, and therefore whether it 
would be subject to the average lot area per dwelling unit in the Supplementary Residential 
Development Standards for Elevator Apartment Buildings. This provision would resolve that ambiguity. 
Also, there is currently not a definition in the zoning code for mixed-use buildings with residential uses 
above. The second option would have a targeted impact, only applying to mixed-use buildings with 
dwellings above the first floor and which existed prior to the effective date of the zoning ordinance.  
 
Process – Required City Approvals 
Plan Commission.  Section 400.2700(C) of the Zoning Code requires that CUP applications be reviewed by 
Plan Commission.  The Plan Commission shall make a recommendation to the City Council for their 
consideration.  A public hearing is required at the Plan Commission meeting. 
 
City Council.  Section 400.2700(D) of the Zoning Code requires that CUP applications be reviewed by City 
Council for final decision, subsequent to a public hearing and recommendation from Plan Commission.  In 
conducting its review, City Council shall consider the staff report, Plan Commission’s recommendation, 
and application to determine if the proposed CUP application meets the requirements of the Zoning Code. 
 
 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of the Text Amendment, with Issue 1 Option 1 and either, but not both, Issue 
2 Option 1 or Issue 2 Option 2. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

M - 3 - 4



Plan Commission Meeting 

At the Plan Commission meeting on August 16, 2022, the Plan Commission voted unanimously to 
approve TXT 23-03 as follows: (Amendments in bold and underlined) Subsequent to the Plan 
Commission meeting, the City Attorney recommended changes to those approved by the Plan 
Commission. These changes are in blue font below.  
 
Issue #1: Parking Exception for Redevelopment: 
 
Section 400.2130:  

B. Exception For Change Of Use Of Existing Commercial or Mixed-Use Buildings. A reduction in the 
number of required off-street parking and loading spaces for the reuse of a commercial or mixed-
use building, existing prior to the effective date of this Chapter, may be authorized under the 
conditional use permit procedure. (see Article XI), subject to the following conditions:  
A. The reduction shall not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the off-street parking space 

requirements for the proposed use, except for buildings which existed prior to January 1, 1930;  
B. No reduction shall be made in the amount of existing available off-street parking spaces on-site;  
C. The proposed use does not involve an expansion of the building that would result in additional 

parking or loading space requirements;  
D. Notwithstanding compliance with other standards contained in this Article (e.g., setbacks and 

landscaping), any portion of the site that can be reasonably converted to off-street parking shall 
be so used to satisfy a portion of the parking requirement; and  

E. The reduction shall not result in spill-over parking on adjacent or nearby properties. In making 
its determination, the Plan Commission and City Council shall consider information on the 
parking and loading demand associated with the proposed use as presented by the applicant 
and City staff.  

 
 
Issue #2: Elevator Building Lot Area Conflict: 
 
Amend the definition of “Dwelling, Elevator-Type” in Article II of the zoning code. to read as follows:  
 
“A type of multi-storied, multiple-family dwelling of more than three (3) stories in height or containing 
more than twelve (12) dwelling units with primary access to each floor, above the first floor, provided by 
means of an elevator. Mixed-use buildings, which contain dwelling units above the first floor and which 
existed prior to January 1, 1930, shall not be considered elevator-type dwellings under the meaning 
of this definition.” 
 
 
After the Plan Commission meeting, the City Attorney recommended the following changes in lieu of those 
approved on August 16th. These changes are more targeted to the building at 608 Kingsland Avenue, and 
less applicable to the few other buildings in the City in which these amendments would apply. The City 
Manager approves of these more targeted amendments, as does the applicant, Max Sassouni.  These 
changes are incorporated into the DRAFT Bill. 
 
 
 

M - 3 - 5



Issue #1: Parking Exception for Redevelopment: 

Amend Section 400.2130 by adding section “F” to the existing list.  

Section 400.2130 Exceptions To The Minimum Off-Street Parking and Loading Space Requirements. 

F. Exception for Reuse of Existing Elevator Apartment Buildings in the “CC” Core Commercial
District. A reduction in the number of off-street parking and loading spaces or waiver thereof
may be authorized under the conditional use procedure (see Article XI) for the reuse of an
existing elevator apartment building in the "CC” Core Commercial District provided the
building does not exceed four stories in height, all dwelling units are above the ground floor
and the total building area used for dwelling units is not increased.

Issue #2: Elevator Building Lot Area Conflict: 

Amend Section 400.1140(C)(1)(b) by adding the to section (b) as outlined below. 

C. Section 400.1140 Elevator Apartment Buildings.

Density And Dimensional Regulations. 

1. Minimum lot area.

a. Per development. Twenty thousand (20,000) square feet.

b. Average per dwelling unit. Five hundred (500) square feet. Exception: This minimum shall 
not apply to the reuse of an existing elevator apartment building in the "CC” Core
Commercial District, provided the building does not exceed four stories in height, all
dwelling units are above the ground floor and there is no increase in the total building
area used for dwelling units.

M - 3 - 6



INTRODUCED BY: Councilmember Steve McMahon  DATE: October 9, 2023 
 
BILL NO.: 9530            ORDINANCE NO.: 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 400.1140 AND 400.2130 OF THE ZONING CODE 
OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, 
RELATING TO SUPPLEMENTAL RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR 
ELEVATOR APARTMENT BUILDINGS, AND EXCEPTIONS TO THE MINIMUM OFF-
STREET PARKING AND LOADING SPACE REQUIREMENTS, RESPECTIVELY, BY 
ADDING EXCEPTIONS TO MINIMUM LOT AREA STANDARDS AND PARKING AND 
LOADING SPACE REQUIREMENTS WHERE THERE IS REUSE OF CERTAIN EXISTING 
ELEVATOR APARTMENT BUILDINGS IN THE “CC” CORE COMMERCIAL DISTRICT. 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 400 (Zoning Code) of the Municipal Code of the City of University City, 
Missouri divides University City into several zoning districts and regulates the uses to which the 
premises located therein may be put; and 
 

WHEREAS, Stone & Alter Real Estate Company applied for a text amendment to Zoning Code 
Section 400.2130 to allow for a reduction or waiver in the number of off-street parking and loading 
spaces for the reuse of an existing elevator apartment building in the "CC” Core Commercial District, 
and a text amendment to Zoning Code Section 400.1140.C.1(b) to provide for an exception the minimum 
lot area for the reuse of an existing elevator apartment building in the "CC' Core Commercial District; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, at its meeting on August 16, 2023, the City Plan Commission reviewed the 
application for said Zoning Code text amendments and recommended to the City Council approval of 
the text amendment; and  
 
 WHEREAS, due notice of a public hearing to be held by the City Council in the City Council 
Chambers at City Hall, 6801 Delmar, University City, Missouri, at 6:30 p.m. on October 23, 2023, was 
duly published on October 8, 2023 in the St. Louis Countian, a newspaper of general circulation within 
University City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said public hearing was held at the time and place specified in the notice, and all 
suggestions or objections concerning said text amendments to the Zoning Code were duly heard and 
considered by the City Council. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.   Sections 400.1140 and 400.2130 of the Zoning Code of the Municipal Code of the 
City of University City, Missouri, relating to supplemental residential development standards for 
elevator apartment buildings, and exceptions to the minimum off-street parking and loading space 
requirements, respectively, are hereby amended, by adding exceptions to minimum lot area standards 
and parking and loading requirements where there is reuse of certain existing elevator apartment 
buildings in the “CC” Core Commercial District, so that said Sections, as so amended, shall read as 
follows:  
  

M - 3 - 7



Section 400.1140 Elevator Apartment Buildings. 
 

A. Development Location. Elevator apartment developments shall not be completely surrounded 
by single-family residential neighborhoods. At least ten percent (10%) of the development's 
boundary shall be adjacent to a major street, a commercial zoning district or a multi-family 
zoning district. 
 

B. Vehicle Access. Access to an elevator apartment development shall be provided by internal 
access drives (public or private) intersecting with a major street, but not closer than one 
hundred fifty (150) feet to an existing street intersection (measured from the centerline of the 
existing street intersection to the centerline of the access drive). 

 
C. Density And Dimensional Regulations. 

 
1. Minimum lot area. 

 
a. Per development. Twenty thousand (20,000) square feet. 

 
b. Average per dwelling unit. Five hundred (500) square feet. Exception: This minimum shall 

not apply to the reuse of an existing elevator apartment building in the "CC' Core 
Commercial District, provided the building does not exceed four stories in height, all 
dwelling units are above the ground floor and there is no increase in the total building area 
used for dwelling units.  
 

2. Minimum lot width and depth. One hundred twenty (120) feet. 
 

3. Minimum building setbacks (including accessory structures). 
 

a. From street right-of-way. Thirty (30) feet. 
 

b. Adjacent to "SR" or "LR" zoned property. 
(1)  Less than or equal to fifty (50) feet in height. Twenty-five (25) feet. 
(2) Over fifty (50) feet to eighty-six (86) feet in height. Fifty (50) feet. 
(3) Over eighty-six (86) feet in height. Eighty (80) feet. 

 
c. Adjacent to all other properties. Twenty-five (25) feet. 

 
4. Minimum distance between buildings. No elevator apartment building shall be located closer 

than seventy-five (75) feet from any other building containing a dwelling unit and located on 
the same lot. 

 
Section 400.2130 Exceptions to the Minimum Off-Street Parking and Loading Space Requirements. 
 

A. Exception for Places of Worship. On-site parking facilities required for places of worship may 
be reduced by not more than fifty percent (50%) where such facilities are located in a non-
residential district and within five hundred (500) feet of public or private parking lots having 
sufficient spaces to make up for the reduction. The use of an off-site public parking lot may 
only be authorized under the conditional use permit procedure (see Article XI).  
The use of an off-site private parking lot shall comply with Section 400.2010(B)(1), and be 
subject to the approval of the Zoning Administrator. 
 M - 3 - 8

https://ecode360.com/print/28293752#28293752
https://ecode360.com/print/28294790#28294790
https://ecode360.com/print/28294385#28294385


B. Exception for Change of Use of Existing Commercial Buildings. A reduction in the number of 
required off-street parking and loading spaces for the reuse of a commercial building, existing 
prior to the effective date of this Chapter, may be authorized under the conditional use permit 
procedure. (see Article XI), subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. The reduction shall not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the off-street parking space 

requirements for the proposed use; 
 

2. No reduction shall be made in the amount of existing available off-street parking spaces on-
site; 

 
3. The proposed use does not involve an expansion of the building that would result in additional 

parking or loading space requirements; 
 
4. Notwithstanding compliance with other standards contained in this Article (e.g., setbacks and 

landscaping), any portion of the site that can be reasonably converted to off-street parking shall 
be so used to satisfy a portion of the parking requirement; and  

5. The reduction shall not result in spill-over parking on adjacent or nearby properties. In making 
its determination, the Plan Commission and City Council shall consider information on the 
parking and loading demand associated with the proposed use as presented by the applicant and 
City staff. 

C.  Exception Where Public Parking Is Allocated for Use. The City Council may allow a reduction 
in the number of on-site parking spaces required when the building served by such parking is 
located within five hundred (500) feet of a public parking facility or lot, provided a fee is paid 
to the City for pro rata share of the cost of constructing and maintaining such facility or lot. 

 
D. Exception for Shared Parking Arrangements. Shared parking is an arrangement in which two 

(2) or more uses with different peak parking periods (hours of operation) use the same off-
street parking spaces to meet their off-street parking requirements. Up to one hundred percent 
(100%) of the parking required for one (1) use may be supplied by the off-street parking spaces 
provided for another use. 
 
1. By conditional use permit, a reduction in the number of parking spaces may be authorized. 

In issuing a conditional use permit, the City will consider whether the uses: 
a. Are located within five hundred (500) feet as the crow flies of the shared parking as 

measured from the entrance of the use to the nearest point on the property; 
b. Have no substantial conflict in the principal operating hours of the uses for which the 

sharing of parking is proposed (see shared parking table in Section 400.2130(D)(3) as a 
guide); 

c. Do not adversely affect surrounding neighborhoods; 
d. Do not adversely affect traffic congestion and circulation;  
e. Have a positive effect on the economic viability or appearance of the project or on the 

environment; and 
f. Relieved spaces or off-site shared parking spots cannot be located within the SR, LR, 

MR or HR Zoning Districts. 
 

2. Application Requirements for Shared Parking. As a part of the application materials 
required for a conditional use permit, the applicant seeking shared parking shall submit to 

M - 3 - 9

https://ecode360.com/print/28294790#28294790
https://ecode360.com/print/28294473#28294473


the Zoning Administrator the following information as a part of the conditional use permit 
application: 
a. Proof that the uses of the shared spaces will reflect different peak hours of operation at 

different times of the day, week, month or year (see shared parking table below); 
b. Proof of the size and types of proposed development or substantial changes, size and 

type of activities, composition of tenants, rate of turnover for parking spaces, and 
anticipated peak parking and traffic loads; 

c. Proof that the route from required ADA-accessible spaces in the shared parking area to 
the nearest ADA-accessible entrance follows an accessible route as defined by the most 
recent ADA standards; and 

d. An agreement providing for the shared use of parking areas, executed by the parties 
involved, including owners of record, that shall include provisions for maintenance, 
snow removal, ownership, liability and duration of the agreement, and must be filed 
with the Department of Planning and Development in a form approved by the Planning 
and Development Director. 
 

3. Shared Parking Table. The following table shall be used to determine peak hours of 
operation for proposed shared parking. Parking requirements shall be the cumulative 
requirements of the uses sharing the parking, except where different categories of uses 
(retail or service, employment, civic, or dwellings) are participating in the sharing 
agreement and are likely to generate distinctly different times of peak parking demand. 
Each use should provide a percentage of parking required by these regulations according to 
the shared parking table below. Whichever time period column requires the highest total 
parking spaces among the various uses should be the amount of parking provided subject to 
the shared parking agreement and Plan Commission review. Alternative parking allocations 
may be approved as a function of the conditional use permit based on industry data or other 
sufficient evidence and analysis of peak parking demands for specific uses. 

 

 
 
 

4. Duration of Agreement. Shared parking privileges will continue in effect only as long as the 
agreement, binding on all parties, remains in force. Agreements must guarantee long-term 
availability of the parking, commensurate with the use served by the parking. 
 

5. Recording of Agreement. The agreements must be recorded with the County Recorder. If 
the uses of either party changes, the CUP is no longer valid unless the Zoning 

 

Percentage of Required Parking Spaces by Period  

Land Use 
Monday through Thursday 

Day and Evening 
Friday through Sunday 

Day and Evening Nighttime 

 
6:00 A.M. to 5:00 

P.M. 
5:00 P.M. to 1:00 

A.M. 
6:00 A.M. to 5:00 

P.M. 
5:00 P.M. to 1:00 

A.M. 
1:00 A.M. to 6:00 

A.M. 

Employment 100% 10% 5% 5% 5% 

Retail or service 75% 75% 100% 90% 5% 

Restaurant 50% 100% 75% 100% 25% 

Entertainment and recreation 30% 100% 75% 100% 5% 

Place of worship* 5% 25% 100% 50% 5% 

School 100% 10% 10% 10% 5% 

Dwelling 25% 90% 50% 90% 100% 

Lodging 50% 90% 75% 100% 100% 

* Place of worship parking needs will be considered on a case-by-case basis as faiths gather at different days and times during the week. 

M - 3 - 10



Administrator authorizes the new uses and determines there is compliance with the shared 
parking table [Section 400.2130(D)(3)]. If a shared parking agreement lapses or is no 
longer valid, then parking must be provided as otherwise required by this Article. 

 
6. Revocation of Permits. Failure to comply with the shared parking provisions of the shared 

parking plan shall constitute a violation of the Zoning Code and shall be cause for 
revocation of a certificate of zoning compliance and/or building permit. 

 
E. Exception for Uses Located Near Transit Stations and Stops. For uses located within five 

hundred (500) feet of a public transit station or stop, the off-street parking requirements may be 
reduced by ten percent (10%). The Loop Trolley stops and stations shall not be included in this 
exception. 

 
F. Exception for Reuse of Existing Elevator Apartment Buildings in the “CC” Core Commercial 

District. A reduction in the number of off-street parking and loading spaces or waiver thereof 
may be authorized under the conditional use procedure (see Article XI) for the reuse of an 
existing elevator apartment building in the "CC” Core Commercial District provided the building 
does not exceed four stories in height, all dwelling units are above the ground floor and the total 
building area used for dwelling units is not increased. 
 
Section 2.   This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as provided 

by law. 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED this 23rd day of October, 2023. 
 
       ________________________________ 
         MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
 CITY CLERK 
 
 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
 CITY ATTORNEY 

M - 3 - 11

https://ecode360.com/print/28294473#28294473


Stone & Alter Real Estate Co 

6631 Delmar Boulevard 

University City, MO 63130 

 

August 9th, 2023 

 

Proposed Text Amendments to the University City Zoning Code 

 

Stone & Alter Real Estate Co has submitted a Conditional Use Permit Application for review at the 
August 16th, 2023 University City Planning Commission Meeting. The Conditional Use Permit 
Application at 608 Kingsland Avenue contemplates the redevelopment of the multifamily portion of the 
nearly 100-year-old mixed use building from 36 efficiency dwelling units to 48 efficiency dwelling units. 
608 Kingsland is in the University City Civic Complex Historic District and the Core Commercial (CC) 
zoning district.  

Although the proposed redevelopment will decrease the number of occupants in the building, and 
therefore the parking spots used, there is ambiguity as to whether the CUP can be granted without text 
amendments to the Zoning Code. The below-proposed text amendments seek to promote redevelopment 
in the Core Commercial zoning district where many of the historic buildings have become functionally 
obsolete. These buildings were originally built before modern parking requirements and need flexibility in 
meeting these parking requirements in order to give them new life and restore vitality to the Delmar Loop. 
This sentiment is already echoed by the Zoning Code: The “Intent and Purpose” of the Off-Street 
Parking & Loading Regulations states that there are exceptions to the parking requirements, “provided 
as a practical matter so as not to unduly limit the reuse of developed properties by strictly imposing off-
street parking space standards. Furthermore, because substantial public parking supply is available in the 
“CC” district, certain exceptions from these requirements are provided for in this district. 

Because goal of these text amendments is to promote redevelopment of University City’s historic 
buildings, the proposals are constructed in a way that they should not have the unintended consequence of 
loosening the requirements on proposed new construction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

M - 3 - 12



Issue 1: Parking Exception for Redevelopment 

Option 1: Increase flexibility and planning board discretion for the reuse of existing commercial and 
mixed-use buildings 

Section 400.2130 Exceptions To The Minimum Off-Street Parking and Loading Space Requirements. 

B. Exception For Change Of Use Of Existing Commercial or Mixed-Use Buildings. A reduction in 
the number of required off-street parking and loading spaces for the reuse of a commercial or 
mixed-use building, existing prior to the effective date of this Chapter, may be authorized under 
the conditional use permit procedure. (see Article XI), subject to the following conditions: 

1. The reduction shall not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the off-street parking space 
requirements for the proposed use; 

2. No reduction shall be made in the amount of existing available off-street parking spaces 
on-site; 

3. The proposed use does not involve an expansion of the building that would result in 
additional parking or loading space requirements; 

4. Notwithstanding compliance with other standards contained in this Article (e.g., 
setbacks and landscaping), any portion of the site that can be reasonably converted to 
off-street parking shall be so used to satisfy a portion of the parking requirement; and 

5. The reduction shall not result in spill-over parking on adjacent or nearby properties. In 
making its determination, the Plan Commission and City Council shall consider 
information on the parking and loading demand associated with the proposed use as 
presented by the applicant and City staff.  

M - 3 - 13



Issue 2: Elevator Building Lot Area Conflict 

Option 1: Create an exception for historic elevator apartments in the Core Commercial district. 

Section 400.1140 Elevator Apartment Buildings. 

A. Density And Dimensional Regulations. 
1. Minimum lot area. 

a. Per development. Twenty thousand (20,000) square feet. 
b. Average per dwelling unit. Five hundred (500) square feet., except for 

developments in the Core Commercial (CC) district existing prior to the 
effective date of this Chapter. 

Option 2 
Adjust definition of elevator-type dwelling to exclude historic mixed-use buildings. 

Article II Definitions 

DWELLING, ELEVATOR-TYPE 

A type of multi-storied, multiple-family dwelling of more than three (3) stories in height or containing 
more than twelve (12) dwelling units with primary access to each floor, above the first floor, provided by 
means of an elevator. Mixed-use buildings, which contain dwelling units above the first floor and 
which existed prior to the effective date of this Chapter, shall not be considered elevator-type 
dwellings under the meaning of this definition. 

M - 3 - 14



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

NB20231023-01

Resolution for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget Amendment #5

Keith Cole, Director of Finance Finance / All
New Business - Resolution 2023-16 Yes

City Manager recommends approval of the Resolution for fiscal year 2022-2023 Budget 
Amendment #5.

Increase in Fund Balance - General Fund - $3,464,916; Solid Waste Fund - $1,023,994; Econ Dev Retail Sales Tax Fund - $166,600; Capital Imp 
Sales Tax Fund - $260,300; Parks Stormwater Sales Tax Fund - $674,800; Public Safety Sales Tax Fund - $182,100; Golf Course Fund - $236,300; 
Olive I-170 TIF RPA 1 - $129,000; Olive I-170 TIF RPA 3 - $47,320. Reduction in Fund Balance - Third Ward Revitalization - $373,800.   

Various See Detail - Various

See Detail - Various See Detail - Various

The changes in the General Fund, Solid Waste Fund, EDRST Fund, Capital Imp Sales Tax Fund, Parks Stormwater Sales 
Tax Fund, Public Safety Sales Tax Fund, Golf Course Fund, Olive I-170 TIF RPA1, and Olive I-170 RPA3 will have an 
increase in fund balance by $3,464,916, $1,023,994, $166,600, $260,300, $674,800, $182,100, $236,300, $129,000, and 
$47,320, respectively. The changes in the Third Ward Revitalization Fund will have a reduction in fund balance by 
$373,800, respectively. The change in Sewer Lateral Fund and Parking Garage Fund will have no impact to fund balance.

The attached information is the fifth (5th) budget amendment of fiscal year 2023.  The 
amendment incorporates the increases and decreases of revenues and expenditures of the 
mentioned funds.  Please note, the increase of roughly $3.4 million in the General Fund is 
mainly due from sales tax, state gas tax, grant revenue, Gross Receipts (utilities), building & 
zoning, ambulance, misc revenue, and insurance recoveries, then offset by expenses related 
to flood & FEMA and the transfer out of funds for the foregoing of the Solid Waste Fund loan. 

N/A

1. Budget Amendment Details 
2. Resolution for Approval of the Amendment

Prudent Fiscal Management

City Manager, Gregory Rose October 23, 2023

N - 1 - 1



N - 1 - 2



General Fund:
Revenue Revenue 

Account Increase Decrease Description
Revenues

1) 4001 Real Property - Current 28,100          Increase in collection of personal property tax

2) 4010 Personal Property - Current 55,430          Increase in collection of personal property tax

3) 4020 Intangible Property 2,200            Increase in Intangible Property

4) 4030 Interest & Penalties on Del Tax 1,630            Increase in collection of interest on delinquent prop taxes

5) 4101 Local Use Tax 14,005          Increase in collection of Local Use taxes

6) 4105 County-wide Sales Tax (pool) 846,300        Increase in County wide Sales Tax

7) 4115 Fire Sales Tax (pt of sale) 88,430          Increase in collection of Fire Sales Tax (pt of sale)

8) 4150 State Gas Tax 235,000        Increase in collection of State Gas taxes

9) 4160 County Road Fund 32,200          Increase in collection of County Road Fund

10) 4205.30 Grant Revenue - Police 72,050          Increase in collecting reimbursements for Police grants

11) 4207 Grant Revenue FEMA 380,600        Increase in collecting reimbursements for FEMA Grants

12) 4301 Business Licenses -                (50,000)        Decrease in Business Licenses collected

13) 4401 Electric 342,000        Increase in Electric

14) 4405 Natural Gas 358,000        Increase in Natural Gas

15) 4410 Water 79,500          Increase in collection of Water

16) 4415 Telephone 715,215        Increase in Telephone

17) 4430 Right of Way Use 7,400            Increase in ROW

18) 4505 Building & Zoning 309,100        Increase in Building & Zoning 

19) 4510 Forest Activity Permit 150               Increase in collection of Forest Activity Permits

20) 4540 Ambulance Services 357,240        Increase in Ambulance Services

22) 4550 Weed & Debris - Delinquent 5,700            Increase due to receiving amounts from St. Louis Co.

23) 4703 Parking Fees 22,000          Increase in Parking Fees

24) 4713 City Restitution 200               Increase in City Retitution 

25) 4717 Biometric ID Fee 1,600            Increase due to Biometric Fees

FY23 Budget Amendment #5
To Be Approved by City Council

October 23, 2023

N - 1 - 3



General Fund:
Revenue Revenue 

Account Increase Decrease Description
Revenues

FY23 Budget Amendment #5
To Be Approved by City Council

October 23, 2023

26) 4725 Bond Forfeiture 2,000            Increase due to individuals forfeiting bonds

27) 4804 Misc. Operating Revenue 446,200        Increase due to funds from redevelopment bond issuer

31) 4805 Insurance Recoveries 320,250        Increase due to checks from ins. Co. on flood vehicles

31) 4808 Credit Card Fees 6,200            Increase in Credit Card Fees

31) 4814 Settlement 17,400          Increase in Settlements (was not in budget)

32) 4885 Unrealized Gain or Loss 56,300          Increase due to good fluctuations in stock market

Change in Revenues - Increase 4,752,400     

N - 1 - 4



General Fund:
Expenditure Expenditure

Account Increase Decrease Description
Expenditures

1) Legislative
01.10.02.6010 Professional Services (2,325)           Increase in Prof Dev and Membership &
01.10.02.6120 Professional Development 900               Certifications; offset by Prof Services
01.10.02.6650 Membership & Certifications 1,425            No impact to fund reserves

-                                                                            
2) Asst City Manager's Office - Communications

01.12.04.6010 Professional Services 1,000            Increase in Prof Services, Printing Services,
01.12.04.6050 Maintenance Contracts (4,400)           Telephone, Technology Services, Office
01.12.04.6090 Postage (3,700)           Supplies; offset by Maint Contract, 
01.12.04.6130 Advertising & Public Notices (1,200)           Postage, and Advertising
01.12.05.6150 Printing Services 3,700            No impact to fund reserves
01.12.05.6270 Telephone & Mobile Devices 1,200            
01.12.04.6560 Technology Services 700               
01.12.04.7001 Office Supplies 2,700            

-                                                                            
3) City Manager's Office

01.12.05.5001 Salaries-Full Time (11,900)         Increase Events & Reception, Professional 
01.12.05.6020 Legal Services 101,000        Development, Insurance-Public Officials, Membershis &
01.12.05.6040 Events & Reception 1,500            Certifications; offset by Salaries-Full-Time
01.12.05.6120 Professional Development 8,000            Increase in Legal Services; offset by Police Salaries-Full-Time
01.12.05.6220 Insurance - Public Officials 900               No impact to fund reserves
01.12.05.6650 Memberships & Certifications 1,500            

4) Human Resources
01.14.07.5001 Salaries-Full Time 10,800          Increase in various expenditures, however, 
01.14.07.5340 Salaries-Part-Time & Temp (10,800)         Offset by Salaries Part-Time, Professional Services,
01.14.07.5460 Medical Insurance 6,300            Misc Operating Services 
01.14.07.5540 EAP 8,100            No impact to fund reserves 
01.14.07.6035 Disability Benefits 3,000            
01.14.07.6050 Maintenance Contracts 8,200            
01.14.07.6090 Postage 2,300            
01.14.07.6120 Professional Development 1,400            
01.14.07.6270 Telephone & Mobile Devices 1,200            
01.14.07.6010 Professional Services (22,600)         
01.14.07.6700 Misc. Operating Services (7,900)           

5) Finance
01.16.08.5460 Medical Insurance 6,600            Increase in Medical Insurance, Auditing &
01.16.08.6001 Auditing & Accounting 9,300            Accounting, Insurance-Public Officials,
01.16.08.6220 Insurance - Public Officials 2,400            Technology Services; offset by 
01.16.08.6560 Technology Services 500               Bank & Credit Card Fees
01.16.08.6770 Bank & Credit Card Fees (18,800)         No impact to fund reserves

6) Information Technology
01.18.11.5460 Medical Insurance (7,500)           Increase in Maintenance Cotracts, 
01.18.11.6050 Maintenance Contracts 7,500            Professional Development, Telephone & Mobile 
01.18.11.6120 Professional Development 2,100            Devices, Technology Services; offset by 
01.18.11.6270 Telephone & Mobile Devices 15,800          Medical Insurance, Internet Services,
01.18.11.6320 Internet Services (2,100)           Office Supplies, Computer Equipment 
01.18.11.6560 Technology Services 3,200            No impact to fund reserves 
01.18.11.7001 Office Supplies (3,200)           
01.18.11.8120 Computer Equipment (15,800)         

7) Municipal Courts
01.20.14.5001 Salaries-Full Time (760)              Increase by Salaries Part Time, Overtime, 
01.20.14.5340 Salaries-Part Time & Temp 6,545            Professional Services; offset by Salaries 
01.20.14.5380 Overtime 12,600          Full-time, Medical Insurance, Professional Development,
01.20.14.5460 Medical Insurance (4,500)           Insurance Liability, Technology Services, 
01.20.14.6010 Professional Services 1,335            Membership & Certifications, 
01.20.14.6120 Professioanl Development (1,334)           Bank& Credit Card Fees
01.20.14.6170 Insurance Liablility (800)              No impact to fund reserves
01.20.14.6560 Technology Services (3,000)           
01.20.14.6650 Membership & Certifications (486)              
01.20.14.6770 Bank & Credit Card Fees (1,000)           

FY23 Budget Amendment #5
To Be Approved by City Council

October 23, 2023

N - 1 - 5



General Fund:
Expenditure Expenditure

Account Increase Decrease Description
Expenditures

FY23 Budget Amendment #5
To Be Approved by City Council

October 23, 2023

8) Police
01.30.20.5220 Injury Leave 3,200            
01.30.20.5340 Salaries-Part-time & Temp 32,000          
01.30.20.5380 Overtime 40,000          
01.30.20.5420 Workers Compensation 68,200          
01.30.20.5660 Social Security Contributions 12,300          Increase in various expenditures, however, 
01.30.20.6160 Insurance-Property & Auto 1,200            will be offset by Salaries-Full Time
01.30.20.6260 Electricity 33,100          No impact to fund reserves.
01.30.20.6380 Equipment Maintenance 3,500            
01.30.20.6400 Office Equipment Maintenance
01.30.20.6545 Property Rental 34,300          
01.30.20.6560 Technology Services 4,700            
01.30.20.6610 Staff Training 800               
01.30.20.6650 Memberships & Certifications 1,400            
01.30.20.6700 Misc Operating Services 5,400            
01.30.20.7090 Office & Computer Equip 4,500            
01.30.20.7370 Institutional Supplies 3,400            
01.30.20.7530 Medical Supplies 2,000            
01.30.20.7570 Hardware & Hand Tools 3,600            
01.30.20.5001 Salaries-Full-Time (723,400)       
01.30.20.8200 Vehicles & Equipment 3,000            
01.30.90.8200 Vehicles & Equipment 58,000          
01.30.95.6610 Staff Training 14,500          

9) Fire
01.35.25.5001 Salaries-Full Time (50,000)         
01.35.25.5380 Overtime 106,000        Increase in Overtime, Work Comp, 
01.35.25.5420 Workers Compenstation 54,700          Medical Ins, Clothing Allowance, and 
01.35.25.5460 Medical Insurance 17,300          various other expenditures.  Offset by Salaries
01.35.25.5700 Clothing Allowance 28,200          Full-Time, Maint Contracts, and Technology 
01.35.25.5900 Medicare 2,800            Services.  Remaining amount of $247,900 to 
01.35.25.6005 Administration, Commission, and Co  92,000          be offset by other departments.  No impact to
01.35.25.6050 Maintenance Contracts (10,000)         fund reserves.
01.35.25.6160 Insurance Property & Auto 7,200            
01.35.25.6560 Technology Services (20,000)         Increase in Flood & FEMA Expense due to 
01.35.25.7530 Medcial Supples 10,200          flood restoration at Firehouse 1, final payment of 
01.35.25.7570 Hardware & Hand Tool 2,000            $26,075; purchase of oxygen tanks of $10,131
01.35.25.7770 Uniforms & Safety Gear 7,500            as a result of the flood.  Funds to come from 
01.35.90.8130 Flood & FEMA Expense 36,800          other departments, no impact to fund reserves.

10) Public Works - Admin & Engineering
01.40.30.5001 Salaries Full-Time 70,000          
01.40.30.5340 Salaries -Part-Time & Temp (3,200)           Increase in Salaries Full-Time, Workers Comp,
01.40.30.5420 Workers Compensation 3,000            Temporary Labor, Prof Dev, Advertising, Misc
01.40.30.5460 Medical Insurance Repair & Maint, Laundry Service, and Office
01.40.30.5660 Social Security Contributions Supplies; expenses offset by Salaries Part-Time,
01.40.30.5740 Pension Contribution Nonunif Prof Services, Staff Training, Memberships,
01.40.30.5900 Medicare and Office/Computer Equipment.  Remaining
01.40.30.6010 Professional Services (20,000)         amount of $63,900 will come from fund reserves.
01.40.30.6070 Temporary Labor 4,500            
01.40.30.6120 Professional Development 900               
01.40.30.6130 Advertising & Public Notices 6,400            
01.40.30.6170 Insurance Liability
01.40.30.6430 Mic. Repair & Maintenance 500               
01.40.30.6610 Staff Training (900)              
01.40.30.6650 Membership & Certification (900)              
01.40.30.6660 Laundry Services 900               
01.40.30.7001 Office Supplies 3,200            
01.40.30.7090 Office & Computer Equip (500)              

N - 1 - 6



General Fund:
Expenditure Expenditure

Account Increase Decrease Description
Expenditures

FY23 Budget Amendment #5
To Be Approved by City Council

October 23, 2023

11) Public Works - Street Maintenance
01.40.32.5380 Overtime 8,600            Increase in Overtime, Workers Comp, Medical
01.40.32.5420 Workers Compensation 8,700            Insurance, Maint Contracts, Temporary Labor,
01.40.32.5460 Medical Insurance 11,000          Electricity.  Most increase due to additional work
01.40.32.6050 Maintenance Contracts 3,500            needed from flood clean up, wasn't anticipated.
01.40.32.6070 Temporary Labor 23,800          Expenses offset by fund reserves.
01.40.32.6260 Electricity 24,500          

12) Public Works - Facilities Maintenance
01.40.36.5001 Salaries Full-Time (8,200)           Increase in Workers Compensation, Insurance
01.40.36.5220 Injury Leave 4,500            Property & Auto, Insurance Natural Gas, 
01.40.36.5380 Overtime 5,600            Water; offset by Salaries Full-Time, Maintenance
01.40.36.5420 Workers Compensation 4,700            Contracts, Building Maintenance , Laundry 
01.40.36.5460 Medical Insurance 3,200            Services, Institutional Services, Building Materials,
01.40.36.6050 Maintenance Contracts (16,200)         and Building Improvements.  
01.40.36.6070 Temporary Labor 2,100            Remaining expenditure amount of $13,000 will be
01.40.36.6160 Insurance  Property & Auto 7,400            offset by fund reserves.
01.40.36.6250 Natural Gas 8,200            -                
01.40.36.6280 Water 8,800            
01.40.36.6290 Sewer 6,600            
01.40.36.6360 Building Maintenance (4,700)           
01.40.36.6660 Laundry Services (2,000)           
01.40.36.7370 Institutional Supplies (1,000)           
01.40.36.7490 Building Materials (3,000)           
01.40.36.8001 Building Improvements (3,000)           

13) Public Works - Capital Improvements
01.40.90.8130 Flood & FEMA Expenses 207,000        Increase due to purchasing Hot Water Boiler

replacement, $37,950, at Central Garage due to 
the flood; leasing of monthly vehicles at $48,260.
Various expenditures related to the flood.  Expenses
to be offset by fund reserves.

14) Planning & Development
01.45.40.5001 Salaries Full-Time (143,600)       Increase in various expenditures that  were 
01.45.40.5340 Salaries Part-Time & Temp 13,900          notanticipated throughout the fiscal year. 
01.45.40.5380 overtime 1,200            Expenditures will be offest by Salaries Full-Time,
01.45.40.6010 Professional Services 113,700        Demolition & Board-up
01.45.40.6050 Maintenance Contracts 19,400          No impact to fund reserves 
01.45.40.6070 Temporary Labor 500               
01.45.40.6110 Mileage Reimbursement 9,200            
01.45.40.6120 Professional Dvelopment 3,600            
01.45.40.6510 Demolition & Board-up (113,700)       
01.45.40.6660 Laundry Services 8,300            
01.45.40.6700 Misc. Operating Services 700               
01.45.40.6770 Bank & Credit Card Fees 11,800          
01.45.90.8130 Flood & FEMA Expenses 21,990          Increase due to new electric car to replace Nissan 

Leaf electric car that was damaged from flood.  
Council approved 06.26.23. Funds to come from 
fund reserves.

N - 1 - 7



General Fund:
Expenditure Expenditure

Account Increase Decrease Description
Expenditures

FY23 Budget Amendment #5
To Be Approved by City Council

October 23, 2023

15) Parks, Recreation & Forestry - Park Maintenance
01.50.45.5001 Salary-Full-Time 19,700          Increase in Various expenditures that were
01.50.45.5380 Overtime 4,300            not anticipated throughout the fiscal year.
01.50.45.5420 Workers Compensation 7,300            Expenditures will be offset by various expenditures
01.50.45.5460 Medical Insurance 12,100          within the department.
01.50.45.6070 Temporary Labor 36,800          No impact to fund reserves 
01.50.45.6160 Insurance-Property & Auto 4,500            
01.50.45.6170 Insurance-Liability 900               
01.50.45.6250 Nature Gas 2,500            
01.50.45.6260 Electricity 10,500          
01.50.45.6270 Telephone & Mobile Devices 1,600            
01.50.45.6280 Water 17,500          
01.50.45.7290 Cncrete &  Clay Products (19,700)         
01.50.45.6260 Sewer (4,300)           
01.50.45.7610 Fuel (7,300)           
01.50.45.6210 Insurance - Flood (12,100)         
01.50.45.7130 Agricultural Supplies (36,800)         
01.50.45.6650 Membership & Certifications (4,500)           
01.50.45.6570 Miscellaneous Rental (900)              
01.50.45.6010 Professional Services (2,500)           
10.50.45.7490 Building Materials (10,500)         
01.50.45.5660 Social Security Contributions (1,600)           
01.50.45.8100 Misc. Improvements (17,500)         
01.50.45.9950 Transfer Out 976,494        Increase due to foregoing Interfund Loan between

General Fund and Solid Waste Fund.  By foregoing
loan, need to recognize as expenditure in Gen Fund
and revenue in Solid Waste Fund.  Council approved
03.27.23. Funds to come from fund reserves.

16) Parks, Recreation & Forestry - Community Center
01.50.49.5001 Salaries Full-Time 1,400            Increase in Salaries Full-Time, Natural Gas,
01.50.49.5340 Salaries-Part Time & Temp Water, Sewer; offset by Workers Compenstaion,
01.50.49.5420 Workers Compensation (2,500)           Medical Insurance, Maintenance Contracts,
01.50.49.5460 Medical Insurance (1,400)           Recreational Supplies, 
01.50.49.6050 Maintenance Contracts (1,000)           No impact to fund reserves 
01.50.49.6250 Natural Gas 1,000            
01.50.49.6280 Water 2,700            
01.50.49.6290 Sewer 2,500            
01.50.49.6640 Exterminations
01.50.49.7370 Institutional Supplies (2,700)           

17) Parks, Recreation & Forestry - Aquatics
01.50.51.5860 Unemployment 2,100            Increase in Unemployment, Medicare;
01.50.51.5900 Medicare 520               offset by Insurance Liability, Electricity
01.50.51.6170 Insurance Liability (520)              No impact to fund reserves
01.50.51.6260 Electricity (2,100)           Offset by Unemployment 

18) Parks, Recreation & Forestry - Centennial Commons

01.50.53.5860 Unemployment 3,600            Increase in Unemployment, Maintenance
01.50.53.6050 Maintenance Contract 2,600            Contracts, Office & Computer Equip;
01.50.53.6210 Insurance Flood (6,100)           Offset by Insurance Flood, Electricity
01.50.53.6250 Natural Gas No impact to fund reserves 
01.50.53.6260 Electricity (6,200)           
01.50.53.7090 Office & Computer Equip 6,100            

N - 1 - 8



General Fund:
Expenditure Expenditure

Account Increase Decrease Description
Expenditures

FY23 Budget Amendment #5
To Be Approved by City Council

October 23, 2023

  
Change in Expenditures - Increase 1,287,484     

Total General Fund
  Increase in Fund Balance 3,464,916     

The effect on the General Fund from these amendments are as follows:

Original Adopted Budget (Deficit) (183,830)$     
Change in Budget Amendment #1 (98,285)         
Balance after Budget Amendment #1 (282,115)$     
Change in Budget Amendment #2 (2,467,763)    
Balance after Budget Amendment #2 (2,749,878)    
Change in Budget Amendment #3 (242,612)       
Balance after Budget Amendment #3 (2,992,490)    
Change in Budget Amendment #4 (1,520,622)    
Balance after Budget Amendment #4 (4,513,112)    
Change in Budget Amendment #5 3,464,916     
Balance after Budget Amendment #5 (1,048,196)    

N - 1 - 9



Sewer Lateral Fund:
Expenditure Expenditure

Account Increase Decrease Description
1) 05.40.82.5001 Salaries-Full-Time (4,620)                 Increase in Workers Compensation;

05.40.82.5420 Workers Compensation 4,620                  offset by Salaries Full-Time
No impact to fund reserves

Total Sewer Lateral Fund
  No Impact to Fund Balance -                      

Solid Waste Fund:

Revenue Revenue
Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 08.4515 Yard Waste 17,900                Increase in Yard Waste, Refuse Fee -
08.4535 Refuse Fees - Interest & pen 12,200                Interest & Pen, Misc Waste Services;
08.4845 Miscellaneous Waste Services 17,400                
08.4900 Transfer In 976,494              Increase due to foregoing Interfund Loan between

General Fund and Solid Waste Fund.  By foregoing
loan, need to recognize as expenditure in Gen Fund
and revenue in Solid Waste Fund.  Council approved
03.27.23. Funds to come from fund reserves.

Expenditure Expenditure
Account Increase Decrease Description

2) 08.40.64.5001 Salaries-Full-Time (14,690)               Increase in various expenditues that were
08.40.64.6001 Auditing & Accounting 2,000                  not anticipated throughout the fisical year;
08.40.64.6005 Administration, Commission and Co  2,230                  offset by Salaries Full-Time.
08.40.64.6090 Postage 1,330                  No impact to fund reserves
08.40.64.6150 Printing Services 3,630                  
08.40.64.6770 Bank & Credit Card Fees 5,500                  

3) 08.40.66.5001 Salaries-Full-Time (131,000)             Increase in Overtime, Workers Compensation, 
08.40.66.5380 Overtime 131,000              Insurance Property & Auto,
08.40.66.5420 Workers Compensation 12,113                Electricity; offset by Salaries Full-Time,
08.40.66.5460 Medical Insurance (12,113)               Medical Insurance, Professional Services,
08.40.66.6010 Professional Service (1,000)                 Maintenance Contracts
08.40.66.6050 Maintenance Contracts (8,300)                 No impact to fund reserves
08.40.66.6160 Insurance Property & Auto 8,300                  
08.40.66.6260 Electricity 1,000                  

Total Solid Waste Fund
  Increase to Fund Balance 1,023,994           

FY23 Budget Amendment #5
To Be Approved by City Council

October 23, 2023

N - 1 - 10



FY23 Budget Amendment #5
To Be Approved by City Council

October 23, 2023

Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Fund:
Revenue Revenue

Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 11.4145 Economic Dev Sales Tax 166,600              Increase in sales tax due to portion of sales tax generated
from TIF and over originally budgeted.

Total Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Fund
  Increase to Fund Balance 166,600              

Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund:
Revenue Revenue

Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 12.4110 Capital Improvement (pool) 260,300              -                      Increase in sales tax over orginally budgeted.

Expenditure Expenditure
Account Increase Decrease

2) 12.40.90.5340 Salaries-Part-Time & Temp 16,900                Increase in Salaries Part-Time & Temp,
12.40.90.5380 Overtime 4,000                  Overtime, Bridge Construction;
12.40.90.8040 Bridge Construction 29,510                offset by Salaries Full-Time

No impact to funds reserves
12.40.90.5001 Salaries Full-Time (50,410)               

Total Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund
  Increase to Fund Balance 260,300              

Parks & Stormwater Sales Tax Fund:
Revenue Revenue

Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 14.4120 Park Sales Tax (pt of sale) 360,900              -                      Increase in sales tax due to portion of sales tax generated
from TIF and over originally budgeted.

14.4207 Grant Revenue FEMA 313,900              Increase in Grant Revenue-FEMA due to accruing the 
receivable for pool lighting expenses at the pool.

Expenditure Expenditure
Account Increase Decrease

2) 14.40.90.5380 Overtime 4,700                  Increase in Overtime; offset by Salaries Full-Time
14.40.90.5001 Salaries-Full-Time (4,700)                 No impact to fund reserves 

Total Parks & Stormwater Sales Tax Fund
  Increase  to Fund Balance 674,800              

Public Safety Sales Tax Fund
Revenue Revenue

Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 15.4117 237,200              Adjust revenues to better align with actual receipts.

Expenditure Expenditure

Account Increase Decrease Description

2) 15.30.90.8275.01 55,100                Increase in Building Improvements due to 
contract with Navigate Solutions and costs associated
with the project; Council approved 05.08.23.
Expenses to be funded by fund reserves.

Total Public Safety Sales Tax Fund
  Increase  to Fund Balance 182,100              

Building Improve - Annex/Trinity

N - 1 - 11



FY23 Budget Amendment #5
To Be Approved by City Council

October 23, 2023

Parking Garage Fund:

Revenue Revenue
Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 27.4755 Monthly Parking Permits 3,150                  Adjust revenues to better align with actual receipts.
27.4822 Rental of Property (3,150)                 No impact to fund reserves.

Expenditure Expenditure
Account Increase Decrease Description

2) 27.70.81.6050 Maintenance Contracts (1,300)                 Increase in Insurance Property 
27.70.81.6160 Insuranance Property & Auto 1,300                  & Auto, Utilities; offset by Maintenance 
27.70.81.6310 Utilities 3,900                  Contracts, Lot Cleaning 
27.70.81.6810 Lot Cleaning (3,900)                 No impact to fund reserves

Total Parking Garage Fund
  No Impact to Fund Balance -                      

Golf Course Fund:
Revenue Revenue

Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 28.4601 Golf Course 236,300              Adjust revenues to better align with actual receipts.
offset by the fund reserves

Expenditure Expenditure
Account Increase Decrease Description

2) 28.50.47.5001 Salaries Full-Time 3,800                  Increase in various expenditures that were
28.50.47.5001.01 Salaries-Full-Time COVID-19 800                     not anticipated throughout the fiscal year,
28.50.47.5380 Overtime 5,100                  offset by Equipment Maintenace, Salaries
28.50.47.5420 Workers Compensation 10,100                Part-Time & Temp, Building Maintenance
28.50.47.5660 Social Security Contributions 6,900                  No impact to fund reserves
28.50.47.5900 Medicare 1,600                  
28.50.47.6160 Insurnace Property & Auto 2,200                  
28.50.47.6250 Natural Gas 1,000                  
28.50.47.6280 Water 16,600                
28.50.47.6380 Equipment Maintenance (2,630)                 
28.50.47.6540 Equipment Rental 16,800                
28.50.47.6650 Membership & Certification 900                     
28.50.47.6660 Laundry Services 930                     
28.50.47.7690 Recreational Supplies 3,600                  
28.50.47.5340 Salaries -part-time & Temp (59,300)               
28.50.47.6360 Building Maintenance (8,400)                 

Total Golf Course Fund
  Increase to Fund Balance 236,300              

N - 1 - 12



Olive I-170 TIF Fund (T2) RPA-1
Revenue Revenue

Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 30.4035 Payment in Lieu of Taxes 129,000      Increase due to receipts of Payment in Lieu of Taxes
for RPA 1.

30.4045 TIF Revenue 980,000      Increase due to receipts of sales tax that was not 
originally budgeted.

Expenditure Expenditure
Account Increase Decrease Description

2) 30.12.73.9070 Community Dev Expense 980,000      Increase due to required transfers to the Trustee,
BOKF, per the Trust Indenture.  Funds to come 
from fund reserves.

Total Olive I-170 TIF Fund (T2) RPA-1
  Increase to Fund Balance 129,000      

Third Ward Revitalization Fund (RPA 2)
Revenue Revenue

Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 31.4045 TIF Revenue 3,900          Increase due to receipts of sales tax above the base.

31.4804 Misc Operating Revenue 368,000      Increase from bond closing to fund costs associated
with the RPA 2 redevelopment project.

Expenditure Expenditure
Account Increase Decrease Description

2) 31.12.73.9070 Community Development Exp 745,700      Increase due to collecting of surplus pilots that are 
then returned to St. Louis County Collector per 
the trust indenture. Funds to come from fund reserves

Total Third Ward Revitalization Fund (RPA 2)
  Reduction to Fund Balance (373,800)     

Olive I-170 TIF Fund (T4) RPA-3
Revenue Revenue

Account Increase Decrease Description

1) 32.4035 Payment in Lieu of Taxes 218,420      Increase due to receipts of Payment in Lieu of Taxes
32.4045 TIF Revenue 83,900        for RPA 3 and receipts of sales tax above the base.

Expenditure Expenditure
Account Increase Decrease Description

32.12.73.9070 Community Development Exp 255,000      Increase due to collecting of surplus pilots that are 
then returned to St. Louis County Collector per 
the trust indenture. Funds to come from fund reserves

Total Olive I-170 TIF Fund (T4) RPA-3
  Increase to Fund Balance 47,320        

FY23 Budget Amendment #5
To Be Approved by City Council

October 23, 2023

N - 1 - 13



Resolution 2023 - xx 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 (FY23) 
BUDGET – AMENDMENT # 5 AND APPROPRIATING SAID AMOUNTS 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of University 

City, Missouri, that the Annual Budget for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2022, was 

approved by the City Council and circumstances now warrant amendment to that original 

budget. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in accordance with the City Charter, the several 

amounts stated in the budget amendment as presented, are herewith appropriated to the 

several objects and purposes named. 

 
Adopted this 23rd day of October 2023. 

 
      

________________________________ 
     Mayor  

 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
Certified to be Correct as to Form: 
 
 
_______________________________  
City Attorney 
 
 

N - 1 - 14



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

NB20231023-01

Compensation Ordinance Adjustment

Amy Williams Human Resources
New Business Bill 9531 Yes

Due to the workload included in the Work Plan, the City Manager recommends adding the position of Planner to the Planning and 
Development Department. The position will be used to assist with staffing the Green Practice Commission, the soon to be created 
Architectural Review Board, assist with Olive Boulevard Phase 2 development, and support various other projects. This also seeks 
to adjust the Director of Parks, Recreation, and Forestry to Director of Parks, Recreation and Public Area Maintenance. 

Grade 10 Salary Range for the Planner is $50,758.04 - $80,080.99

Up to $80,080.99

General Fund - 01 General Fund - 01

The proposed Ordinance seeks to add a Planner to the Planning and Development 
Department and also updates the title of Director or Parks, Recreation, and Forestry to 
Director of Parks, Recreation, and Public Area Maintenance. 

The minor update to the Director title better captures the tasks and responsibilities of the 
Department with the move of the Streets Division to this Department. 

Draft Bill No. 9531

Employees

City Manager, Gregrory Rose October 22, 2023

N - 2 - 1



N - 2 - 2



INTRODUCED BY:  DATE:     October 23, 2023 

BILL NO.  9531 ORDINANCE NO: 

AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE COMPENSATION TO BE PAID TO 
CITY OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES AS ENUMERATED HEREIN 
FROM AND AFTER NOVEMBER 13, 2023, AND REPEALING 
ORDINANCE NO. 7337. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, 
AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  From and after November 13, 2023, City employees within the 
classified service of the City, hereinafter designated, shall receive as compensation for their 
services such amounts as may be fixed by the City Manager in accordance with Schedule 
A (Base Pay), included herein, with a salary not less than the lowest amount and not greater 
than the highest amount set forth in Schedule A, and shall additionally receive as 
compensation for their services such benefits generally provided in the Administrative 
Regulations and Civil Service Rules now in effect, all of which are hereby adopted, 
approved, and incorporated herein by this reference. 

N - 2 - 3



 
 

N - 2 - 4



 
 

 

 

N - 2 - 5



 
  N - 2 - 6



 
 

N - 2 - 7



 
 

 
 

N - 2 - 8



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 Section 2. From and after November 13, 2023, seasonal and regular part-time 
employees of the City may be employed at an hourly rate in accordance with the following 
Schedules B1 and B2 (hourly pay rates for regular part-time employees and seasonal 
employees, respectively).

N - 2 - 9



 
 

 
N - 2 - 10



 
 

 

 

 

N - 2 - 11



 
  N - 2 - 12



 
 

 

 
 

 
Section 3. From and after on November 13, 2023, City employees in the unclassified service of the City, except as 

otherwise noted, shall receive as compensation for their services the amounts hereinafter set forth, or where a grade in salary is 
specified, such amounts as may be fixed by the City Manager within the specified grade in accordance with the following Schedule 
C (base pay rates for unclassified full-time, part-time, temporary or grant-funded employees) and shall additionally receive as 
compensation for their services such benefits generally provided in the Administrative Regulations now in effect, all of which are 
hereby adopted, approved, and incorporated herein by this reference.     

N - 2 - 13



 
 

 
 

 

N - 2 - 14



 
 

 
 

N - 2 - 15



 
 

Section 4. From and after November 13, 2023, all full-time non-executive, non-
administrative or non-professional employees shall be subject to the work week or work cycle 
and regulations relating to overtime work, except as noted.  A listing of executive, 
administrative, and professionally designated employees or positions shall be issued by the 
City Manager. 

 
1. Department directors shall not be paid overtime nor receive compensatory time for hours 

worked in excess of 40 per week. 
 

2. Department directors may grant compensatory time on a straight time basis to their 
designated executive, administrative, or professional employees for hours worked in excess 
of 40 hours per week.  Such employees are exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act provisions. 
 

3. The normal work week for full-time office, field, maintenance, and non-commissioned police 
personnel, and for police and fire executive and administrative employees, is set at 40 hours 
per week.  

 
4. Hours worked in excess of 40 hours per week, when authorized in advance by department 

directors, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half or in lieu thereof, department directors 
in their discretion may grant compensatory time off also at the rate of time and one-half up to 
an accumulation allowable under Fair Labor Standards Act provisions.  

 
5. Hours worked in excess of 160 hours in a 28-day period by commissioned police personnel 

who are not exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act maximum hours provisions, when 
authorized in advance by the Police Chief, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half or in 
lieu thereof, in the Police Chief’s discretion, the Police Chief may grant compensatory time off 
also at the rate of time and one-half up to an accumulation allowable under Fair Labor 
Standards Act provisions. 

 
6. Hours worked in excess of 212 hours in a 28-day period by uniformed fire personnel who are 

not exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act maximum hours provisions, when authorized in 
advance by the Fire Chief, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half or in lieu thereof, in 
the Fire Chief’s discretion, the Fire Chief may grant compensatory time off also at the rate of 
time and one-half up to an accumulation allowable under Fair Labor Standards Act provisions. 

 
7. The average work week of Battalion Chiefs shall be 56 hours. They shall not be compensated 

for any hours in excess of 56 hours. 
 
Section 5.  
 

A. From and after November 13, 2023, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grades 
shown, shall receive compensation for five years consecutive City service, with the exception 
of military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts, from the 
sixth (6th) year through the seventh (7th) year: 
 

In Pay Grade     Monthly Amount 
      P-3  Police Sergeant  $63 
      P-4  Police Lieutenant    67 
      P-5  Police Captain      71  

N - 2 - 16



 
 

 
B. From and after November 13, 2023, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grades 

shown, shall receive compensation for seven years consecutive City service, with the 
exception of military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts, 
from and after the eighth (8th) year through the tenth (10th) year: 

 
In Pay Grade     Monthly Amount 
      P-2   Police Officer   $49 
      P-3  Police Sergeant  123 
      P-4  Police Lieutenant  132 
      P-4  Police Captain  142 

 
C. From and after on November 13, 2023, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grade 

shown, shall receive compensation for ten years consecutive City service, with the exception 
of military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts, from and 
after the eleventh (11th) year through the fourteenth (14th) year: 

 
   In Pay Grade       Monthly Amount 
   P-2  Police Officer   $80 
 
 

D. From and after on November 13, 2023, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grade 
shown, shall receive compensation for fourteen years consecutive City service, with the 
exception of military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following amounts, 
from and after the fifteenth (15th) year: 

       
In Pay Grade       Monthly Amount 
      P-2  Police Officer            $92 

 
E. From and after November 13, 2023, Paramedic Firefighters and Paramedic Fire Captains, in 

the pay grades shown, shall receive compensation for seven (7) years consecutive City 
service, excepting military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following 
amounts, from the eighth (8th) year through the tenth (10th) year: 
 

In Pay Grade       Monthly Amount 
         F-1  Paramedic Firefighters $77 
         F-2  Paramedic Fire Captains   86 
 

F.  From and after on November 13, 2023, Paramedic Firefighters and Paramedic Fire Captains, 
in the pay grades shown, shall receive compensation for ten (10) years consecutive City 
service, excepting military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following 
amounts, from the eleventh (11th) year through the twentieth (20th) year: 

 
 In Pay Grade       Monthly Amount 

          F-1  Paramedic Firefighters $133 
          F-2  Paramedic Fire Captains   133 

 
 
 

N - 2 - 17



G. From and after on November 13, 2023, Paramedic Firefighters and Paramedic Fire Captains,
in the pay grades shown, shall receive compensation for twenty (20) years consecutive City
service, excepting military leave of absence, in their present classification in the following
amount, from the twenty-first (21st) year:

In Pay Grade   Monthly Amount 
F-1 Paramedic Firefighters $168 
F-2 Paramedic Fire Captains   168 

For the purpose of calculating consecutive service in this section, time served in the 
classifications of Firefighter and Paramedic Firefighter is combined for the same person.  

Section 6. From and after November 13, 2023, all full-time employees shall have their 
hourly rate computed as follows: 

1. The hourly rate for all full-time employees, who, according to Section 4, have a set or
average work week of 40 hours, shall have their hourly rate computed by multiplying
the monthly rate by 12, dividing that product by 2,080.

2 The hourly rate for full-time Paramedic Firefighters, Paramedic Fire Captains and
Battalion Chiefs of the Fire Department, shall have their hourly rate computed by
multiplying the monthly rate by 12, dividing that product by 2,912.

Section 7. Ordinance No. 7337 and all ordinances in conflict herewith are 
repealed. Ordinance No. 7040 shall remain in effect in full force and unchanged.  

Section 8. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from its passage as provided 
by law. 

PASSED and ADOPTED this 13th day of November, 2023. 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 

CITY ATTORNEY 

N - 2 - 18



N - 2 - 19



N - 2 - 20



N - 2 - 21



N - 2 - 22



N - 2 - 23



N - 2 - 24


	1. BILL 9528 – AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI TO PARTICIPATE IN THEMISSOURI FIRE FIGHTERS’ CRITICAL ILLNESS TRUST AND POOL.
	2. BILL 9529 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 205.020 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO ADDITIONS, INSERTIONS, DELETIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO THE INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE, 2018 EDITION, BY ADDING PROVISIONS ON PREM...
	3. BILL 9530 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 400.2130 AND 400.1140 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, RELATING TO THE MINIMUM OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING SPACE REQUIREMENTS AND MINIMUM LOT AREA REQUREMENTS FOR EXISTING ELEVATOR ...
	Resolution
	1. Res 2023-16  FY23 Budget Amendment #5
	2. BILL 9531 – AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE COMPENSATION TO BE PAID TO CITY OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES AS ENUMERATED HEREIN FROM AND AFTER NOVEMBER 13, 2023, AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 7337.
	E1 - 2023-10-09 Draft Reg Minutes.pdf
	Resolution
	1. BILL 9528 – AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI TO PARTICIPATE IN THE MISSOURI FIRE FIGHTERS’ CRITICAL ILLNESS TRUST AND POOL. Bill Number 9528 was read for the first time.
	Introduced by Councilmember Klein
	2. BILL 9529 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 205.020 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO ADDITIONS, INSERTIONS, DELETIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO THE INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE, 2018 EDITION, BY ADDING PROVISIONS ON PREM...
	Introduced by Councilmember McMahon
	3. BILL 9530 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 400.2130 AND 400.1140 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, RELATING TO THE MINIMUM OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING SPACE REQUIREMENTS AND MINIMUM LOT AREA REQUIREMENTS FOR EXISTING ELEVATOR...

	J1 - All - Text Amendment (608 Kingsland).pdf
	COPY

	L1 - All - Comp Plan  R.pdf
	Blank Page
	L1 - Cover Form - Comp Plan.pdf
	COPY


	L2 - All - Eminent Domain.pdf
	L2 - Cover Form - Eminent Domain.pdf
	COPY

	Memo to Council  - Eminent Domain - 10.18.23.pdf
	Violations for Properties.pdf
	1456 Laughlin
	7342 Carleton



	L3 - All - Seafood City Expenditure.pdf
	COPY

	L4 -  All - OMCI 2024.pdf
	COPY

	L5 - All - CUP 23-04 (608 Kingsland R.pdf
	COPY
	7. Floor Plan and Renderings.pdf
	cover
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6
	7
	8
	9

	Blank Page

	M1 - All Cancer trust - Final  R.pdf
	MFFCIP-Program-Overview.pdf
	Missouri Fire Fighters�Critical Illness Pool
	Agenda
	Program Summary
	Process
	Organization Chart
	Organization Chart
	Covered Cancers
	Eligibility
	Rate for first three years
	Benefits to Employers
	Benefits to Firefighters
	How to Join-  See INSTRUCTIONS AND CHECKLIST TO JOIN THE POOL 
	Frequently Asked Questions
	What is the Cancer Award Program?
	Slide Number 15
	What is the organizational structure?
	What cancers are covered?
	What are my choice of limits and cost options?
	How to Join
	Meet Our Team
	Thank You!

	Blank Page
	Bill  9528 - Firefighters Critical Illness.pdf
	AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI TO PARTICIPATE IN THEMISSOURI FIRE FIGHTERS
	CRITICAL ILLNESS TRUST AND POOL.
	PASSED and ADOPTED this _______ day of October, 2023.

	M1 - Cover Buk 9528.pdf
	COPY


	M2 - All  Premises identification.pdf
	Bill 9529 - Fire Code Amendment v2.pdf
	AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 205.020 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO ADDITIONS, INSERTIONS, DELETIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO THE INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE, 2018 EDITION, BY ADDING PROVISIONS ON PREMISES IDENTIFICA...
	BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:
	Section 1.    Section 205.020 of the Municipal Code of the City of University City, Missouri, relating to additions, insertions, deletions and amendments to the International Fire Code, 2018 Edition, is hereby amended by adding provisions on premises ...
	Section 205.020. Additions, Insertions, Deletions and Amendments.
	A.
	NFPA Standards. All now current or future NFPA Standards shall be referenced and utilized with the exception of NFPA 101, and incorporated herein, by the Fire Marshal, in the interpretation of Sections of the IFC and other codes in order to properly e...
	B.
	The following numbered Sections and Subsections of the International Fire Code, 2018 Edition, as published by the International Code Council, Inc., are hereby amended by additions, insertions, deletions and changes so that such Sections and Subsection...
	1.
	(CHAPTER 1 SCOPE AND ADMINISTRATION) — (SECTION 101 GENERAL).
	101.1 Title. These regulations shall be known as the Fire Code of the City of University City, Missouri, hereinafter referred to as "this code."
	2.
	(SECTION 103 DEPARTMENT OF FIRE PREVENTION).
	103.1 General. The Bureau of Fire Prevention is established within the jurisdiction under the direction of the Code Official. The function of the bureau shall be the implementation, administration and enforcement of the provisions of this code.
	103.2 Appointment. Enforcement Official. It shall be the duty and the responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer, designated as the Fire Chief, to enforce the provisions of this code. The Fire Chief shall be the Code Official.
	103.2.1 Bureau organization. The Bureau of Fire Prevention shall operate under the direct supervision of the Fire Marshal. The Fire Marshal shall be a uniformed member and chief officer of the Fire Department and operate under the direct supervision o...
	The Fire Marshal shall be appointed on the basis of his/her administrative abilities and qualifications to understand, interpret and enforce the technical provisions of this code. All uniformed members of the Fire Department shall be considered membe...
	103.3 Bureau members code enforcement duties and authority. The Fire Marshal, and all properly assigned or appointed members of the Bureau of Fire Prevention shall have the duty to assist the Fire Chief in the administration and enforcement of the pro...
	3.
	(SECTION 104 GENERAL AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITIES).
	104.6 Official records. The Fire Code Official shall keep official records as required by Sections 104.6.1 through 104.6.4. Such official records shall be retained for the period required for retention of public records.
	104.11.4 Compliance with orders. A person shall not willfully fail or refuse to comply with any lawful order or direction of the Fire Official or interfere with the compliance attempts of another individual.
	4.
	(SECTION 105 PERMITS).
	5.
	(SECTION 106 FEES).
	106.2 Schedule of permit fees. A fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with the following schedule:
	6.
	(SECTION 109 BOARD OF APPEALS).
	109.1 General. University City Building Code Section 113 shall be applicable for all appeals involving this code.
	109.2 Limitations on authority. Delete in its entirety.
	109.3 Qualifications. Delete in its entirety.
	7.
	(SECTION 110 VIOLATIONS).
	110.4 Violation penalties. Persons who shall violate a provision of this code or shall fail to comply with any of the requirements thereof or who shall erect, install, alter or repair or do work in violation of the approved construction documents or d...
	8.
	(SECTION 112 STOP WORK ORDER).
	112.4 Failure to comply. Any person who shall continue any work after having been served with a stop work order, except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be guilty of an ordinance violatio...
	9.
	(SECTION 114 UNSAFE CONDITIONS).
	114.1 General. Whenever the Code Official shall find in any structure or upon any premises dangerous or hazardous conditions or materials as follows, the Code Official shall order such hazardous conditions or materials to be removed or remedied in acc...
	10.    (SECTION 404 FIRE SAFETY, EVACUATION AND LOCKDOWN PLANS).
	404.5 Premises identification. Premises identification shall be in accordance with Section 408.
	11. (SECTION 408 PREMISES IDENTIFICATION).
	408.1 Where required. New and existing buildings of Educational Group E shall be identified in accordance with Sections 408.2 through 408.5.
	Exception: Previously approved signage shall be permitted until July 31, 2024.
	408.2      Zone identification. Zones shall be identified in accordance with Sections 408.2.1 through 408.2.4.
	408.2.1 Zone designation.  All occupiable structures on the premises shall be divided into sections or designated a specific zone agreeable to the Fire Code Official.
	408.2.2 Zone color assignment. The zones shall be assigned a primary or secondary color. Other colors may be used/added if approved by the Fire Code Official. (Recommended, not required, assign the zone with the main entrance RED and proceed clockwise...
	408.2.3 Zone level consistency. Zone color assignment shall be consistent on all grades of multilevel structures.
	408.3 Corridors identification. Corridors inside of a zone shall be identified by the color assigned per Section 408.2.
	408.3.1 Striping. A solid color representative of the designated zone shall be applied on the walls on both sides of the corridor.
	408.3.2 Striping size and location. The stripe shall be no less than 4” AFF and no more than 36” AFF. and a minimum of 4 inches (102 mm) in width. The stripe shall be continuous in length of the corridor and terminate at the exit or the transition to ...
	408.3.3 Directional identification. Colored arrows representative of the zone shall be provided at intersecting corridors. The arrow shall be a minimum of 1” in width and 8” in length. The arrows shall be affixed to the corridor wall at least 4”AFF an...
	408.4 Room and area identification. All occupiable rooms and areas within a zone shall be identified in accordance with Sections 408.4.1 through 408.4.5, with numbers or labels in accordance with Section 408.2.
	408.4.1 Room and area designation. Rooms and areas shall be identified by their current known number or known descriptive name (i.e., Gym, Library).
	408.4.2 Room and area color assignment. Rooms and areas shall be assigned the color of the zone they occupy.
	408.4.3 Doors. Doors shall be identified with signage conforming to Sections 408.4.3.1 through 408.4.3.2. Doors shall be labeled in Arabic numbers and alphabetical letters. Numbers shall not be spelled out. Where required, doors shall have signage bot...
	408.4.3.1 Egress/room side of door. A sign with the room number in the assigned zone color shall be affixed over the door and shall be readily visible from inside the room. The numbers shall be in white on a background of the zone color. Each characte...
	408.4.3.2 Ingress/corridor side of door. Room numbers shall be placed above the door and shall be readable from all angles from the hallway or area to which they open. The numbers shall be in white on a background of the zone color. Each character sha...
	408.4.4 Windows. Signs with the room number in the designated zone color shall be affixed to the interior surface of the left most facing window and shall be visible from the exterior of the building.
	408.4.4.1 Placement. Room numbers shall be placed on the left-most window when viewed from outside the building.
	408.4.4.2 Number size/color. The numbers shall be in white on a background of the zone color. Each character shall be not less than 6 inches (152 mm) high with a minimum stroke width of 1/2 inch (13 mm), and visible from ground level.
	408.5       Exterior door identification. All doors on the exterior of a building that provide access into the building shall be identified in accordance with Sections 408.5.1 through 408.5.6.
	408.5.1 Number designation. All exterior doors shall be numbered in a sequential order starting with the main entrance (office door/public entrance). The main entrance shall always be #1. Subsequent doors shall be numbered in sequential order in a clo...
	408.5.2 Number color. The color of the number shall represent the zone color per Section 408.3. Door numbers shall contrast with their background.
	408.5.3 Number size. Door numbers shall be Arabic numbers and alphabetical letters. Numbers shall not be spelled out. Each character shall be not less than 6 inches (152 mm) high with a minimum stroke width of 1/2 inch (13 mm).
	408.5.4 Number placement. Door numbers shall be placed at the top center of the door. Exception: Roll-up doors the numbers shall be located between ½ and ¾ of the height of the door adjacent to the door opening.
	408.5.5 Exterior access to corridors. Doors that provide access directly to a corridor shall be marked with the door number on a retro-reflective block in the corridor zone color per Section 408.3.
	408.5.6 Exterior access to rooms. Doors that provide access directly into a room shall be marked with the room number or descriptive name per Section 408.4.1 directly below the exterior door identification number.
	While not required, facilities are highly encouraged to place large maps showing the rooms/hallway identifiers near the main entrance for use by emergency response personnel.
	12.
	(SECTION 506 KEY BOXES).
	506.3 Location of Knox Key Box. The key box shall be located between four (4) and six (6) feet above finished grade but can be located at other heights at the discretion of the Fire Marshal and his/her designee. A Knox key box shall be required on all...
	13.
	(SECTION 510 EMERGENCY RESPONDER RADIO COVERAGE).
	510.4 Radio Signal Strength. The building shall be considered to have acceptable emergency responder radio coverage when signal strength measurements in ninety-five percent (95%) of all areas on each floor of the building meet the signal strength requ...
	14.
	(SECTION 606 — ELEVATOR OPERATION, MAINTENANCE AND FIRE SERVICE KEYS).
	606.8.5 Elevator Car to Accommodate Ambulance Stretcher. All new elevators, unless approved by the Fire Marshal, shall be designed to accommodate an ambulance stretcher. The doors to the elevator shall open so that the entire stretcher can be rolled i...
	15.
	(CHAPTER 56 EXPLOSIVES AND FIREWORKS) — (SECTION 5601 GENERAL).
	5601.1.3 Fireworks. The possession, manufacture, storage, sale, handling and use of fireworks are prohibited.
	16.
	(SECTION 5609 TEMPORARY STORAGE OF CONSUMER FIREWORKS).
	5609.1 General. Delete in its entirety.
	Section 2.    This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as provided by law.
	PASSED and ADOPTED this _______ day of October, 2023.

	M2 Cover  - Premises identification agenda sheet.pdf
	COPY


	M3 - ALL - TXT 23-03.pdf
	M3  Cover Form - TXT 23-03.pdf
	COPY


	N1 - ALL- Budget Amendment.pdf
	COPY
	FY2023 Budget Amendment 5 - Council.pdf
	Gen Fd Rev
	Gen Fd Exp
	Other Funds
	Other Funds 2

	Blank Page

	N2 - ALL - Comp Ord_Oct_2023_2   R.pdf
	COPY
	Compensation Ordinance and Pay and Classification Plan_October2023_2.pdf
	1. Department directors shall not be paid overtime nor receive compensatory time for hours worked in excess of 40 per week.
	2. Department directors may grant compensatory time on a straight time basis to their designated executive, administrative, or professional employees for hours worked in excess of 40 hours per week.  Such employees are exempt from Fair Labor Standards...
	3. The normal work week for full-time office, field, maintenance, and non-commissioned police personnel, and for police and fire executive and administrative employees, is set at 40 hours per week.
	4. Hours worked in excess of 40 hours per week, when authorized in advance by department directors, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half or in lieu thereof, department directors in their discretion may grant compensatory time off also at the r...
	5. Hours worked in excess of 160 hours in a 28-day period by commissioned police personnel who are not exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act maximum hours provisions, when authorized in advance by the Police Chief, may be paid at the rate of time and o...
	6. Hours worked in excess of 212 hours in a 28-day period by uniformed fire personnel who are not exempt from Fair Labor Standards Act maximum hours provisions, when authorized in advance by the Fire Chief, may be paid at the rate of time and one-half...
	7. The average work week of Battalion Chiefs shall be 56 hours. They shall not be compensated for any hours in excess of 56 hours.
	B. From and after November 13, 2023, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grades shown, shall receive compensation for seven years consecutive City service, with the exception of military leave of absence, in their present classification in t...
	C. From and after on November 13, 2023, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grade shown, shall receive compensation for ten years consecutive City service, with the exception of military leave of absence, in their present classification in t...
	D. From and after on November 13, 2023, the commissioned police personnel, in the pay grade shown, shall receive compensation for fourteen years consecutive City service, with the exception of military leave of absence, in their present classification...

	1. The hourly rate for all full-time employees, who, according to Section 4, have a set or average work week of 40 hours, shall have their hourly rate computed by multiplying the monthly rate by 12, dividing that product by 2,080.

	Blank Page

	2023-10-23 Agenda.pdf
	1. BILL 9528 – AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI TO PARTICIPATE IN THEMISSOURI FIRE FIGHTERS’ CRITICAL ILLNESS TRUST AND POOL.
	2. BILL 9529 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 205.020 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, RELATING TO ADDITIONS, INSERTIONS, DELETIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO THE INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE, 2018 EDITION, BY ADDING PROVISIONS ON PREM...
	3. BILL 9530 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 400.2130 AND 400.1140 OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, RELATING TO THE MINIMUM OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING SPACE REQUIREMENTS AND MINIMUM LOT AREA REQUREMENTS FOR EXISTING ELEVATOR ...
	Resolution
	1. Res 2023-16  FY23 Budget Amendment #5
	2. BILL 9531 – AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE COMPENSATION TO BE PAID TO CITY OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES AS ENUMERATED HEREIN FROM AND AFTER NOVEMBER 13, 2023, AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 7337.




